
Meeting of:  Integrated Commissioning Board
Date: Tuesday, 25th September 2018 
Time: 3.30 pm.
Venue: Training and Conference Suite, First Floor, 

Number One Riverside - Number One 
Riverside

Item 
No.

AGENDA Page No

1.  APOLOGIES 

To receive any apologies for absence. 

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.    

3.  URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS 

To determine whether there are any additional items of business 
which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should 
be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency. 

4.  MINUTES 4 - 12

To consider the minutes of the meeting of the Integrated 
Commissioning Board held 31st July 2018 (5 minutes) 

5.  OVER THE COUNTER PRESCRIBING MEDICINES 

Dr Chris Duffy (CCG Chair) to verbally update (10 minutes) 

6.  CLINICAL AND PROFESSIONAL ADVISORY PANEL (CPAP) 

Dr A. York (CPAP Chair) to verbally update (10 minutes) 

Public Document Pack



7.  TRANSFORMATION HIGHLIGHT REPORT 13 – 49

Strategic Commissioning Programme Director to report (15 minutes) 

8.  ICB PERFORMANCE REPORT 50 – 57

Strategic Commissioning Programme Director to report (10 minutes) 

9.  HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE POOLED BUDGET REPORT - 
PERIOD 4 (JULY) 2018/19 

58 - 67

Chief Finance Officer to report (10 minutes) 

10.  TERMS OF REFERENCE/GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS 
(INCORPORATING SUB-GROUPS) 

Strategic Commissioning Programme Director/Chief Finance officer to 
report (10 minutes) 

11.  GREATER MANCHESTER INTEGRATED COMMISSIONING - 
GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS 

Chief Executive/CCG Accountable Officer to report (10 minutes) 

12.  EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 

To consider that the press and public be excluded from the remaining 
part of the meeting pursuant to Section 100(A)4 of the Local 
Government Act 1972 on the grounds that discussions may involve the 
likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in the provisions of 
Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 and public 
interest would not be served in publishing the information.  

13.  LCO GATEWAY 3 - UPDATE 

Verbal update (15 minutes) 

14.  HMRCCG -  COMMISSIONING & CONTRACT INTENTIONS 2019/20 68 - 73

Associate Director Commissioning to report (15 minutes) 



Integrated Commissioning Board Members
Councillor Iftikhar Ahmed Dr Bodrul Alam
Councillor Allen Brett Graham Burgess
Denise Dawson Dr Chris Duffy
Councillor Kieran Heakin Paul Hinnigan
Councillor Sara Rowbotham

For more information about this meeting, please contact: 
Peter Thompson
Committee and Governance Services
Floor 2, Number One Riverside,
Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU
Telephone: 01706 924715; e-mail: peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk 

mailto:peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk


INTEGRATED COMMISSIONING BOARD

MINUTES OF MEETING
Tuesday, 31st July 2018

PRESENT: G. Burgess (Independent Chair); HMR CCG: Dr B. Alam, 
Dr C. Duffy, D. Dawson, P. Hinnigan; RBC: Councillor A. Brett, Councillor 
K. Heakin and Councillor S. Rowbotham. 

OFFICERS: CCG/RBC: S. Rumbelow (Chief Executive – RBC and 
Accountable Officer – CCG), S. McIvor (Joint Director of 
Commissioning/DASS); CCG: S. Croasdale (Strategic Commissioning 
Programme Director), J. Evans (Deputy Chief Finance Officer); RBC: 
N. Thornton (Director of Resources), G. Hopper (Director of Children’s 
Services), V. Bradshaw (Chief Finance Officer) and P. Thompson (Resources 
Directorate).   

APOLOGIES
28 Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Iftikhar Ahmed, 
A. Fallon, D. Wilcock (RBC), K. Kenton (RBC/CCG), S. Evans, H. Chapman, 
K. Hurley and Dr A. York (CCG).

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
29 There were no declarations of interests.

URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS
30 There were no urgent items of business for this meeting of the 
Integrated Commissioning Board to consider.

MINUTES
31 The Integrated Commissioning Board considered the minutes of its 
previous meeting held on 26th June 2018.

Further to minute 19, a Member asked for an update on ‘Over the Counter 
Prescribing Medicines’ insofar it had been anticipated that a meeting of the 
CCG’s Prescribing Medicines Sub-Group had been expected to meet, prior to 
this meeting of the Integrated Commissioning Board.  

The Chair referred to recent training/development sessions that had been 
recently provided for the Board’s members and key supporting officers on 30th 
May 2018 and 18th July 2018 respectively. In terms of possible outcomes from 
these development sessions one particular issue surrounded the format of 
future meetings and the opportunity to, perhaps, have fewer formal Board 
meetings and to hold more development type sessions which would enable, 
for example, the Board’s membership to focus on a specific issue or an area 
that may be giving cause for concern. A few possible topics in this regard 
could include: financial procedures, the development of the Board’s legal 
framework, the relationship with the North West (Northern Care Alliance) 
Consortium and ‘Best Practice’.

Page 4

Agenda Item 4



Decision:
1. The minutes of the meeting of the Integrated Commissioning Board, 

held 26th June 2018, be approved as a correct record.
2. A meeting of the CCG’s Prescribing Medicines Sub-Group be 

convened at the earliest opportunity to consider the issue of over the 
counter prescribing medicines (further to minute 19 of the Board’s 
meeting held 26th June 2018) and the Integrated Commissioning Board 
be presented with an update on this at its next scheduled meeting on 
25th September 2018.

3. The Director of Commissioning/DASS be requested to present a report 
to the next meeting of the Integrated Commissioning Board, on 25th 
September 2018 outlining options for the future format and content of 
Integrated Commissioning Board meetings. 

LOCAL CARE ORGANISATION - QUARTERLY UPDATE
32 The Board received a presentation from the Chief Officer Northern 
Care Alliance (NCA) Bury and Rochdale and Chief Officer of the Local Care 
Organisation (LCO) which provided an update on the activities of the Local 
Care Organisation in the first quarter period of 2018/19.

The NCA was an NHS Group formed by bringing together two NHS Trusts, 
Salford Royal NHS Foundation Trust and The Pennine Acute Hospitals NHS 
Trust. The NCA Group provided a range of healthcare services including five 
hospitals and associated community services - Salford Royal, The Royal 
Oldham Hospital, Fairfield General Hospital in Bury, Rochdale Infirmary and 
North Manchester General Hospital.

The NCA was being developed to fully align and to be consistent with the 
priorities of the strategic themes of the Greater Manchester Health and Social 
Care Partnership. One of its key aims was to develop new ways of working 
that will ensure patients receive consistently high standards of care. Another 
key function of the Group is to support its Care Organisations in the following 
areas: Developing Service Strategy; Agreeing new/replacement building and 
equipment; Agreeing annual operational delivery plans; Developing a 
standardised operating model which determines best care on the basis of 
evidence of best practice; and organising standardised care to be delivered 
effectively across multiple sites and locations.

A key are of development for the LCO had been the promulgation of mental 
health services and in this regard a Mental Health Steering group had been 
established to monitor progress. 

Decision:
That the presentation be noted.

INTERMEDIATE TIER SERVICE DEEP DIVE REPORT
33 The Board considered a report that was presented by the Director of 
Commissioning, which provided members with detailed information on the 
Intermediate Tier Service, with particular reference to evidence of the service 
impact on Non-Elective Admissions for over 65’s.

Page 5



Following the submission of a performance report to the Board’s meeting on 
28th February 2018, which had  highlighted the increase in Non-Elective 
admissions in over 65’s, a request was made to provide further evidence of 
the impact of the Intermediate Tier Service in the Rochdale locality, and its 
work in reducing emergency admissions to hospital for this cohort of patients. 
The submitted report thus provided further details around the performance of 
this service.

The Intermediate Tier Service was provided by Pennine Acute NHS Hospitals 
Trust commissioned by Rochdale Borough Council and Heywood Middleton 
and Rochdale CCG. The service has been in operation since 1st September 
2015, with performance and outcomes being monitored through a monthly 
contract board. The service was available for any patients who reside within 
the Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale CCG area, or who were registered 
with a local GP based in that area.

The objectives of the Intermediate Tier Service were to fulfil the need for a 
reduction of non-elective admissions for the over 65s and support patients 
aged 18 and over; to reduce the lengths of a patient’s stay in hospital  and to 
deliver a more flexible service which will have the capacity to expand, in a 
cost effective way, to fill the increased demand from the increasing number of 
citizens aged over 65 years, and especially those aged over 85 years who 
presented with frailty and multi-morbidity.  

The Board were advised that the statistical information contained in this report 
would be incorporated into future ‘performance’ reports that are presented by 
the Transformation Programme Director.

Decision:
That the report be noted.

ICB CONSTITUTION PERFORMANCE REPORT
34 The Board considered a report of the Transformation Programme 
Director that reported upon NHS Constitution indicators which included 
granular detail facts which described the affects that these indicators were 
going to have on the Borough of Rochdale’s residents, using 2017/18 data as 
a 12 month summary. It was reported that in future these would likely evolve 
to reflect current performance with a proposed summary of quarter one 
activity (2018/19) to be reported to the Board’s next meeting. 

The report covered the following areas:  Accident and Emergency; Referral to 
Treatment; Early Intervention Psychosis; waiting times for Cancer treatment; 
and improving Access to Psychological Therapies.

The Transformation Programme Director reported that illustrated in Appendix 
A of the report was a proposed new methodology of reporting NHS 
constitution and Adult Social Care indicators to the Integrated Commissioning 
Board. This proposal was intended to evolve each month to report current 
areas of concern and to share good news.

Page 6



Decision:
1. The report be noted
2. The Board approves the revised style of report template, as presented.

TRANSFORMATION HIGHLIGHTS REPORT
35 The Board considered a report of the Transformation Programme 
Director that updated members on the following matters:
a. Programme Delivery – describing transformation progress and key 
risks including the Transformation Theme Report and a Pain Services Case 
Study.
b. Local Care Organisation – update of progress - three months into 
operation.  
c. Performance – A look at the development of Transformation indicators 
and Greater Manchester monitoring including Performance:  Transformation 
Performance Indicators (in both a Rochdale and Greater Manchester context.
d. Communication and Engagement – A roundup of Transformation 
Communication and Engagement activity for June, including information that 
the Board had requested at its previous meeting on 26th June 2018.
e. Risk – High level update on strategic and operational risk

Decision:
That the report be noted. 

GREATER MANCHESTER FUNDED TRANSFORMATION FUND 
PROGRAMME
36 The Integrated Commissioning Board considered a report of the Chief 
Finance Officer that updated on expenditure that had been incurred through to 
June 2018 on the Greater Manchester funded Transformation Fund.

The Board were informed that Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale CCG and 
the Council had jointly applied for Transformation Funding from the Greater 
Manchester Health and Social Care Partnership in 2017/18. This bid was 
successful and £25,170,000 of funding was received, of which £4,640,000 
was utilised in 2017/18. The submitted report updated the Board on current 
plans for the Transformation Fund Programme. 

Alternatives considered:
The Transformation Fund funding from the Greater Manchester Health and 
Social Care Partnership gave the Rochdale locality ‘up front pump priming 
funding’ that was required to fund the transformational activity, which was a 
requirement in order to help to move activity from the acute to the community 
sector.

Decision:
That the report be noted.

Page 7



HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE BETTER CARE FUND - BUDGET 
MONITORING REPORT
37 The Integrated Commissioning Board considered a report of the Chief 
Finance Officer that updated Members with the Quarter 1 (period ending 30th 
June) budget monitoring for the Better Care Fund for the financial year 
2018/19. 

The Integrated Commissioning Board was requested to approve a capital 
budget realignment of £35,000 between the Discharge to Assess scheme and 
the Springhill scheme and £40,000 to the Mental Health Safe Haven 
transformation project and to agree that any unspent capital budget funds at 
the end of 2018/19 are carried over into 2019/20 against existing, or any new, 
schemes that are identified.

Alternatives considered:
It is a requirement of the NHS England guidance to produce a budget for 
2018/19 and this was approved by the Integrated Commissioning Board at its 
meeting on 29th May 2018. The submitted report updated the monitoring 
against the 2018/19 budget which is a requirement of the ‘Section 75 
agreement’. Therefore there were no alternatives to consider. 

In considering this matter a Member sought clarification as to the ‘capital DFG 
budget’ that was referred to in paragraph 5.2 of the submitted report.

Decision:
1. The Integrated Commissioning Board notes the monitoring information 

at Quarter 1 (period ending 30th June) 2018/19.
2. The Integrated Commissioning Board notes that there are 

contingencies being held for the revenue and capital budgets that were 
not yet allocated in 2018/19 - the revenue budget now takes account of 
an additional £125,000 protection of Adult Care Services, to reduce the 
reported ‘pooled gap’ in 2018/19 and that the revenue position currently 
shows a forecasted underspend of £88,900.

3. The capital DFG allocation for 2018/19 be confirmed and it is noted that 
the figures in the submitted report are based on information received 
from NHS England therefore the Integrated Commissioning Board 
approves a budget realignment from the Discharge to Assess scheme 
to the Springhill scheme of £35,000 and £40,000 to the Mental Health 
Safe Haven transformation project and approves the carry forward of 
any unspent capital budget at the end of 2018/19 into 2019/20, noting 
further that this will be arranged in the Local Authority accounts to be 
used against existing and any new schemes in 2019/20.

POOLED BUDGET SAVINGS PROGRAMME 2018/19 JULY UPDATE
38 The Integrated Commissioning Board considered a report of the Chief 
Finance Officer that updated members on the savings requirement 2018/19 
report that was presented to the Board’s meeting on 29th May 2018 which 
highlighted a pooled fund deficit of -£5,100,000. The updates in the report 
were based on the month 3 (June 2018) financial position for the CCG and the 

Page 8



Council. The Pooled Fund deficit as at the end of month 3 (June 2018) was -
£3.1m which represented an improvement of £2,000,000.

The submitted report highlighted actions that had been identified and 
implemented during months 2 and 3 (May and June) of 2018/19. 

The report also stated the need to identify on-going savings schemes due to 
the remaining financial gap within the pooled budget and gave examples of 
possible mitigations that were available to close the current financial gap of 
£3,100,000 within the pooled budget.

In considering the report the Board’s members were informed that the total 
savings required for a balanced pooled budget was £16,654,000 and reports 
on this would be submitted to a meeting of the Integrated Commissioning 
Board in due course.

Alternatives considered:
None reported.

Decision:
1. The report be noted.
2. The Board notes that the Chief Finance Officer will present a 

report/presentation to a future meeting, in due course, regarding the 
total saving required for a balanced pooled budget. 

Reasons for the decision:
The report confirmed the status of the savings proposals for the pooled fund 
and was presented for information purposes at this report.

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
39 Decision:
The Press and Public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of 
the following item of business, in accordance with the provisions of Section 
100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended.
 
Reason for Decision:
Should the press and public remain during debate on this item there may be 
the disclosure of information that is deemed to be exempt under Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

LCO - GATEWAY 3 UPDATE
40 The Director of Resources reported that following completion of 
Gateway 2, a review of the project to date had taken place before moving on 
to Gateway 3. Some challenges and options had emerged from that review, 
which the submitted, confidential, report explored and which set out options 
for the Board to consider and discuss.

Alternatives considered:
A range of alternative options were detailed in the confidential report that was 
considered by the Board.

Page 9



Decision:
1. Consideration of Gateway 3 be deferred until the Board’s next 

scheduled meeting on 25th September 2018 at which it is requested the 
Director of Resources submit a report detailing a preferred option.

2. If necessary an informal meeting of the Integrated Commissioning 
Board’s membership and appropriate officers be convened to discuss 
the options available, with a view to informing recommendations for the 
Board to formally consider.

Reasons for the decision:
To allow the members of the Board more time to explore available options and 
risks with officers and key stakeholders.

Page 10



INTEGRATED COMMISSIONING BOARD
Actions List (July 2018)

ISSUE/MEETING 
REQUESTED

ACTION RESPONSIBLE 
OFFICER(S)

TIMESCALE OUTCOME

Minute 31: Over The 
Counter prescribing 
medicines

To convene a meeting of the 
CCG’s Prescribing Medicines Sub-
Group

Karen Hurley/Sally 
McIvor

Report back to ICB on 
25th September 2018

Minute 31: future 
meetings of the ICB

To present a report to the next ICB 
meeting detailing options for the 
future format and content of board 
meetings

Sally McIvor A report to the ICB’s 
meeting on 25th 
September 2018

Minute 33: Intermediate 
Tier Service (ITS)

The statistical data that was 
included in the ITS Deep Dive 
report to be incorporated into 
future ICB performance 
management reports

Sandra Croasdale To be incorporated into 
future Performance 
reports, commencing with 
the next report that is due 
to be considered at the 
Board’s next meeting on 
25th September 2018

Minute 34: ICB 
Constitution 
Performance Report

To note the approval of the revised 
reporting format, as presented 

Sandra Croasdale The revised reporting 
template to be used at 
future ICB meetings 
commencing with the 
next report that is due to 
be considered at the 
Board’s next meeting on 
25th September 2018

Minute 37: Health and 
Social Care – Better 
Care Fund Budget 
Monitoring Report 

Approval of budget  realignments 
from the Discharge to Assess 
scheme to the Springhill Scheme 
in the sums of £35,00 and £40,000 
respectively and o authorise the 

Sam Evans March 2019

P
age 11



carry forward of unspent funds into 
the 2019/20 budget (at year end)

Minute 38: Pooled 
Budget Savings 
Programme

A report regarding the savings 
required to towards a balanced 
pooled budget 

Sam Evans A report to be submitted 
to a future ICB meeting

LCO – Gateway 3 
Update

A report detailing options for future 
action

Sally McIvor/David 
Wilcock

A report to be presented 
to the Board’s next 
meeting on 25th 
September 2018 

P
age 12



 

Report to Integrated Commissioning Board 
 

 

 Date of Meeting 25th September 2018 
Portfolio Health and Social Care 
Report Author Sandra Croasdale  
Public/Private Document Public 

 

 

Transformation Highlight Report 

 

Executive Summary 

 
1. This paper provides the ICB with an update on the following: 

 
Programme Delivery – describing transformation progress: 

 Appendix 1 – Transformation Theme Report 
 
Finance – an update on finance in relation to transformation is provided in a 
separate paper to ICB 

 Appendix 2 – Finance Report 
 

Local Care Organisation – update of progress 5 months into operation.   
 
Performance – A look at the development of Transformation indicators and 
the data set process:  

 Appendix 3 – Transformation Performance Indicator Dashboard  

 Appendix 4 – Intervention Data Set Process 

 Appendix 5 – Approval List & ICB Status 
 

Communication and Engagement – A roundup of Transformation 
Communication and Engagement activity for July and August: 

 Appendix 6 – Communication and Engagement Update 
 
 
Risk – High level update on strategic and operational risk  

 Appendix 7 – GM Q2 Transformation Risk 

 Appendix 8 – Assurance Framework 
 
 
 

Page 13

Agenda Item 7



  

Recommendation 

 
2.  To note the content of this paper. 
 
 

Reason for Recommendation 

 
3. Report provided for discussion to update members on progress. 

 

Key Points for Consideration 

 
4
. 
 

Programme Delivery 
 
Appendix 1 – Transformation Theme Report – Month 5’s (August) report 
starts to show how the intervention/theme expenditure is performing against 
plan. The figures used in this report are based on an internal budget agreed at 
ICB in (MONTH), vs month end actuals up to July.  
 
A full review of spend has taken place and the outcome of this review is given in 
Appendix 2 – Finance Report which provides spend at intervention level. A 
further review of the delivery of deflections is underway, for all commissioner led 
interventions, and will be finalised by the end of September. The LCO are 
undergoing the Black Hat review, which will be finalised by mid October.  
 
Progress to note:  
 

1. Prevention and Access themes are now fully mobilised and starting to 
demonstrate impact. Of particular note is the work which is ongoing 
around the development of Community Builders and how they engage 
with the public, supporting decision making in the community, for the 
community.  

 
2. Easy Hubs are now in place and so far have supported 450 people to 

access services to improve health and wellbeing. Each contact 
presents with an average of three health and social care needs, 
increasing the opportunity to make a difference.  

 
3. Focussed Care Workers: Referral levels continue to increase from GP 

Teams where Focussed Care is embedded within the neighbourhoods. 
Since the commencement of the service in April 2018, 384 people 
have been supported by Focussed Care Workers with the target to 
reach 800 by April 2019. Further contact has been made with three 
new practices this period; all but 4 practices are now engaged. The 
aim is to have all GP practices signed up by mid-October. 

 
4. The Children’s One System Approach has demonstrated a huge 

increase in the number of Early Help Assessments being completed 
during the period April to August 2018/19 compared to the same 
period in previous years: 

Page 14



 
 

 
Whilst this is not yet translating into a reduced number of contacts into 
the Early Help and Safeguarding Hub, this is a very encouraging start.   

 
5. The Safe Haven Mental Health Urgent Care intervention has made 

progress over the last month and Rochdale Infirmary has now been 
agreed as the location. Significant remodelling of the accommodation 
is required to facilitate this, which is a capacity issue for Estates. This 
is being escalated through the Strategic Estates Group and 
PCFT/PAHT Estates teams. 

 
Recruitment of the Safe Haven posts is underway. Current projected 
start date for the Safe Haven is the end of November. Should estate 
work not be completed by then, the recruited staff would be utilised to 
support an additional capacity in the home offer which would support 
deflection delivery.  

 
6. Early Diagnosis of Cancer - Interim project support has been identified 

for this intervention for 1 day a week to support the delivery and 
progress of the projects. Within Early Diagnosis of cancer, there are 
two projects: ACE2 Pilot which is a GM led scheme which identifies 
patients with ‘Vague Symptoms’ that are suspected of cancer to be 
sent direct for a CT scan without referral to a specialist. The aim is for 
HMR to join the already established pilot from 1 October 2018, 
however, there has been some delays due to the Nurse delivering the 
service leaving. There is a meeting on 12th September with GM 
colleagues to understand capacity and timelines to progress this 
further and confirm a go live date.  

 
The other project is a NES led project which also provides capacity for 
earlier CT scan but for patients with symptoms of suspected 
pancreatic cancer. Currently there has been some delay with other 
CCG’s approving this collaborative project through individual 
governance routes. A Task and finish group has been established, 
with the first meeting September 12th to understand current barriers 
and to progress the project at pace.  

 

 
Key programme risk areas: 
 
The following provides an update on the key risk areas identified in the last ICB 
report: 
 

 Lack of engagement of the LCO in terms of transformation monitoring and 
reporting. Significant progress has been made on this issue since last 
reported. It has been agreed that the LCO Leadership Group, which 
discusses the detail of the LCO interventions, will have a part 2 to enable 
commissioners to attend. This means that there will be a shared 
understanding of each intervention allowing accurate reporting into ICB. In 

 2018/19 2017/18 2016/17 

No of EHA’s 1126 555 395 

Page 15



addition, a full time PMO resource has been deployed into the LCO to 
support programme management.  

 

 Clinical Pharmacists – Rochdale has been unable to recruit to the full 
complement of clinical pharmacist posts and currently has 1.8 locum 
pharmacists in place. Concern was raised, by both the Medicines 
Management Lead and Primary Care, that the proposed model would not 
deliver the £1.2m savings identified in the plan. Work is now ongoing, led 
by the Medicines Management lead and supported by the PMO, to 
remodel how to deliver the savings. A workshop will take place mid-
September involving primary care to determine a new approach. This 
remains a significant risk at this stage in the financial year.  
 

 

 Planned Care – The planned care theme has a deflection value of £10m 
over 4 years with £2.5m deliverable in 18/19. The pain intervention in the 
theme is currently the only one that is delivering deflections. In addition 
the Integrated Elective Care Pathway (IECP) contract is currently over 
performing which is increasing the risk further. The following actions have 
been put in place which aim to mitigate, however, this remains a very 
significant risk: 

o Senior commissioning resource has been brought into the 
organisation on an interim basis to review the whole of the planned 
care agenda and establish clear programmes of work to deliver. 

o Detailed work is ongoing through the IECP Contract Board to 
understand the reason for the over performance. This initially 
involves validating the data to establish the real overspend. 
Following this data validations plans will be established to try to 
mitigate overspend. 

o The pain intervention is performing well. Work is ongoing to 
determine the forecast deflections for the whole of 18/19 to 
establish if this can mitigate some of the risk from the other 
interventions.  

 
Local Care Organisation (One Rochdale Health and Care) 
 
Work is continuing with the LCO to sign the contract which will include four 
interventions: 

 Core+2 

 Primary Care Academy 

 Enhanced Respiratory  

 HEATT Car 
 
There have been challenges in agreeing the detail mainly in relation to Core+2. It 
is expected that this will now be signed by the end of September.  
 
The LCO is continuing with the Black Hat process which is nearing completion. A 
report is expected to go to LCO Board in October which will describe the 
potential deflection delivery and the gap between this and the required delivery 
at both intervention and aggregate level. 
 

Page 16



In addition the LCO has held a workshop with providers to explore options of 
further interventions to mitigate some of the potential deflection gap. 
Commissioners will be engaged in a further workshop to share ideas and 
develop further.  
 
Work to determine the contracting arrangements for the LCO going forward 
continues with commissioner and provider/commissioner workshops taking place 
to support this. 
 
 
Performance  
 
The development and reporting of TPI’s is taking an on-going phased approach 
in order to begin reporting outcomes to ICB. Of the 33 TPI’s agreed at the ICB 
meeting in July 2018, 9 are illustrated in Appendix 3 - Transformation 
Performance Indicators Dashboard (TPI’s), displaying aggregate data and 
included within the report this month. The phased approach is illustrated below:  
 

 
 
Illustrated in Appendix 3 is the TPI dashboard with the latest data received from 
interventions with agreed TPI’s at the last ICB meeting.  This contains the 
HEATT car TPI’s and subsequent measures where a direct link to anticipated 
deflections can be identified.  This dashboard will develop over time with the plan 
to report this to ICB by exception. 

Phase 1  

 

• Responsible  partnership boards to agree on TPI indicators for 
their interventions 

•  TPIs submitted to ICB for review and sign off 

• Scoping work to continue to report progress at aggregate level 
(service activity measures) data collection 

 

Phase 2  

 

•  Sign up and agreement  from providers to submitted to DSCRO 
(Data Services for Commissioners Regional Office) patient level 
(NHS numbers) datasets for TPIs and interventions  

•  Workshop taking place in September 2018 

•  Business Intelligence will provide analysis and reconcile against 
A&E attendances/Non-Elective admissions and other strategic 
outcomes, mapping patient journeys 

 

Phase 3 

 

• Review of patient journeys with commissioner leads  

• Target and baseline setting for the TPIs without target 

• Ongoing monitoring and reporting of TPIs to responsible boards 
for performance management and to mitigate any associated 
risks 

 

Page 17



 
Also contained within the scorecard are the service activity measures for 4 
interventions within the Neighbourhood theme which show the throughput of the 
particular interventions.  In the coming months, these service activity measures 
will be expanded upon through the capture of patient level data and their links to 
overall strategic outcomes, as described in Appendix 4 – Intervention Data Set 
Process.  As an example, of the total number of patients engaged with a 
service, how many of these attended A&E or were admitted as a Non-Elective?  
 
Illustrated in Appendix 4 further describes the next steps in getting data from 
each intervention and reporting this against agreed TPI’s.  During September 
2018, key stakeholders from interventions and providers will be attending a 
workshop facilitated by Rochdale PMO and Business Intelligence colleagues to  
demonstrate a suggested minimum dataset which will be completed by 
stakeholders and provide patient level data via DSCRO. 
 
Illustrated in Appendix 5 – C1 & C2 Approval List & ICB Status are TPI’s 
which are for sign off by ICB.  Please note that these measures are already 
included within the Local Care Organisation Contract.   
 
 

 
Communication and Engagement  
 
Appendix 6 – Communication and Engagement Update. This sets out the 
communications activity in month from a CCG perspective. This will develop into 
an integrated update across the CCG and LA over time. The appendix includes 
the key messages that have been highlighted through the engagement activity. 
 
 
Risk 

 At present there are two existing risk registers that relate to Transformation: 
 

 Strategic – A high-level register submitted to GMH&SCP on a quarterly 
basis. The Q1 Strategic Risk Register was presented to ICB in June; 
Appendix 7 – GM Q2 Transformation Risk informs ICB of the latest 
update submitted to GM.   

 Appendix 8 –Assurance Framework is an extract from the new 
assurance framework that has been developed as part of reporting to the 
CCG Audit Committee and Governing Body. This highlights the key risks 
and gaps in controls and assurances against all of the key themes for 
transformation. 
 
As this appendix clearly demonstrates the ability to deliver deflections to 
the required ambition is at significant risk across all themes. There are two 
programmes of work that are ongoing which aim to quantify this level of 
risk: 

 

 Local Care Organisation Black Hat process – this is a review process 
currently being undertaken by the LCO to determine the level of 
deflections that are expected to be delivered by the 17 interventions for 

Page 18



which they are responsible. The outcome of this work is due to be 
reported to the LCO Board in October. However, early indications from 
this work demonstrate that there is expected to be a significant gap in 
terms of deflection delivery.  
 

 Financial and deflection review sessions are being held with the theme 
leads for all other interventions not currently held by the LCO. The 
financial spend review has already completed and this has resulted in the 
identification of a significant underspend (see appendix 2). The reviews of 
mobilisation and deflection delivery are ongoing. These are being led by 
the Programme Director and the Deputy CFO and are focussing on 
mitigation plans to ensure full mobilisation and understanding the level of 
deflection delivery. The outcome of this work will be reported to FPR when 
complete by end October.  

 
 

Costs and Budget Summary 

 
5. The financial information in relation to the transformation programme is 

provided in a separate paper to ICB.  

 

Risk and Policy Implications 

 

See risk section above 

  
 

Consultation 

 
7. Theme leads 

One Rochdale Health and Care (LCO) 

 

Background Papers Place of Inspection 

 

8. Not applicable Held by the report author, 3rd Floor, 
Number One Riverside, Smith Street, 
Rochdale 

 

For Further Information Contact: Sandra Croasdale, scroasdale@nhs.net 
07747 473888 
 

 

Page 19

mailto:scroasdale@nhs.net


APPENDIX 1 - TRANSFORMATION THEME REPORT 

Reporting period: September 2018 Theme: Prevention Theme Lead: Tracey 

Harrison

Prog Mgr: Adam Sutcliffe PMO: Hannah Thornton

High level description of interventions:

Community Outreach: Expanding capacity of the existing prevention system through directly delivering health and wellbeing interventions (coaches) and facilitating the 

improvement of community assets for people to access to help themselves to improve health and wellbeing (builders). Includes help for stopping smoking in pre-operative 

adults. This intervention will also include funding for an Income Generation post (now called Voluntary Sector Development Manager) which will aim to research additional 

funding for the necessary services provided by the voluntary sector.

Elderly Oral Health: This intervention aims to improve the oral health of frail elderly Rochdale residents, living in a care home or receiving support from a carer. Training and 

education will delivered to staff around improvement of oral health for this cohort. 

Self Care: A Self-Care Strategic Lead (1) will develop and embed a Self-Care approach in all services to promote patient self-management and independence. This project will 

also train staff in Health and Social Care settings, develop and support Self-Care Champions in services and ensure information we develop provides accessible information for 

the public on Self-Help and Self-Care.

Reducing Diabetes: The funding to allow the continuation of the National Diabetes Prevention Programme past the point that NHS England stop funding it. Project was 

implemented in October 2016 and is delivered by Living Well Taking Control.

Smoking in Pregnancy: A Specialist Midwife (1) and a Support Worker (0.5) will work with pregnant women to support them in stopping smoking. This project also includes 

budget for incentive schemes, Baby Clear monitors and Nicotine Replacement Therapy (NRT).

Children's Oral Health: Provision of twice yearly fluoride varnish application for children aged 3-5 years within early years and school settings (infants and reception classes) 

for children who haven't accessed a dentist. This service will be delivered by Pennine Care Salaried Dental Services (NHSE contract).

Accidents in the Home: Continuation of the Rochdale Accident Prevention Scheme (RAPS) that is currently funded by public health. Involves the fire service installing safety 

equipment in families homes. Referrals for this project come from Children’s Centres and Health Visitors

Theme Lead Exec Summary:

As of August 2018, all interventions within the Prevention Theme are now fully mobilised with all posts now recruited to.

There is an underspend noted above due to a reprofiling of some of the spend allocated to the previously named SIF grant fund to 2020/21. A new grant funding governance 

process is being developed with a proposal going to the Prevention and Access Board on the 19th September.

There is significant work underway to develop an Evaluation Framework for the Prevention theme. The purpose of this is to look at the impact each intervention is having upon 

the system and the residents of Rochdale at a granular and strategic level.

Community Outreach: 

H&WB Coaches / Community Builders – Delivery is ongoing as teams become more established, with targeted work taking place to reach residents who would benefit from 

support but are not generally known to services. Agreement has been reached for the new Mental Health Access Service to become one of the core team members which will 

bring additional expertise and breadth to the core team offer. 

Community Budget – The Connecting You section of the Our Rochdale website is in development and the residents and professionals leaflets providing an overview of the 

Connecting You offer and how to access support are being printed ahead of circulation. The guidance and application documents for the Connecting You: Seed Funding, that 

will support the work of the community builders, are being finalised, with the aim to have all the information available for implementation on the Connecting You page of the 

Our Rochdale Directory by the end of September. A proposal relating to the Connecting You: Development Fund (previously SIF) is being submitted to the Prevention and 

Access Board on 19th September. If approved, implementation of this fund will begin in Oct/Nov.

Pre-op stop smoking - The band six tobacco lead has commenced in post and is scoping the role to develop a clear workplan. A Pennine Acute Smokefree Steering Group is 

being established which will oversee this and the Baby Clear programme. The initial priority of the post is to gain influence within the Trust and raise the profile of a smokefree 

trust and influence change of practice in line with the C.U.R.E. work being led within Wythenshawe hospital. It is expected that smoking quits will commence October.

Voluntary Sector Development Manager – Has been appointed and commenced in post on 16th August. A work plan is being developed as the postholder completes her 

induction.

Finance: Current YTD underspend of £201k due to the delay in spending community budget, which is still in the scoping phase. This is the contributing underspend to the 

prevention theme, but as noted above, there is now a plan in place to balance this which is to be signed off at the next Prevention and Aceess Board. 

TPI's: The first quarterly monitoring performance meeting was held and the service has made an encouraging start however due to training requirements of staff, the service 

did not reach full capacity in Q1. Expectations have been set that this will happen in Q2.

Risk: There are no red risks to report for this intervention. 

Elderly Oral Health: 

Care Homes - identification of the OH champions training commenced 25 champions to date however recruitment ongoing alongside updates. Star rating for compliance 

developed and agreed for care homes.

Secondary Care  work  currently being implemented  with the start of training being delivered next month. 

Home Care –provider services identified and information sent out regarding programme

Ongoing work  updating the oral care guidelines for palliative care,  meetings with  Springhill hospice ongoing

Finance: On track

TPI's: Deflections not expected until 2019/20 however confidence at this point is high in achieving them and hoping to evidence some early impact through the development 

of a TPI dashboard - to be signed off and ratified over the next few months. 

Risk: There are no red risks to report for this intervention. 

Self Care: 

This prorogramme is now well underway with a number of steerting groups driving key areas of work.

Self-Care COPD pathway: The HMR Self-Care Strategy Reference Group has identified a priority piece of work that focuses on people with newly diagnosed COPD and people 

we know have COPD but require further support to self-care and self-manage.

This COPD self-care pathway aims to develop a seamless pathway that will activate, educate and rehabilitate people of HMR with COPD and connect people with their own 

communities to further support and improve their health and wellbeing.

The pathway will achieve its aim by: utilising business intelligence informatics around COPD prevalence and HMR demographics, building on previous successful pilots and 

collaborating key existing and newly developed prevention services from the health and social care economy, this includes: GP Practices, Integrated Neighbourhood Teams, 

Self-Management Service (forma Expert Patient Programme), Enhanced Respiratory Service, Integrated Prevention Model Services and Voluntary and Community Sector 

Services.

The pathway will be a key enabler for the targets and outcomes set out within the Rochdale Locality Plan, The Core +2 specifications for Primary Care, the Respiratory Steering 

Group and the Self Care Strategy for HMR.

Finance: £13k YTD underspent for information resource staffing. However, this will contained within year through training and development in the Self Care programme. 

TPI's: This intervention does not have any deflections associated, but TPI's will be developed in due course. 

Risk: There are no red risks to report for this intervention. 

Page 20



APPENDIX 1 - TRANSFORMATION THEME REPORT 

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 3 Years Budget Actual 

Expenditure FTE Total 11.50 11.50 11.50 11.50

Expenditure Total 1,103,109 1,043,668 643,668 2,790,445

Deflection QTY Total (504) (1,507) (2,649) (4,660)

Benefits Total (127,865) (266,595) (467,286) (861,746)

TOTAL 975,244 777,073 176,381 1,928,699

Expenditure FTE Total 2.50 2.50 0.00 2.50

Expenditure Total 111,784 119,234 24,108 255,126

Deflection QTY Total 0 (680) (980) (1,660)

Benefits Total 0 (502,350) (723,975) (1,226,325)

TOTAL 111,784 (383,116) (699,867) (971,199)

Expenditure FTE Total 1.00 1.00 0.00 1.00

Expenditure Total 102,791 68,750 0 171,541

TOTAL 102,791 68,750 0 171,541

Expenditure FTE Total 1.80 2.80 2.80 1.80

Expenditure Total 68,000 102,000 102,000 272,000

Deflection QTY Total 0 (2,640) (3,520) (6,160)

Benefits Total 0 (528,000) (704,000) (1,232,000)

TOTAL 68,000 (426,000) (602,000) (960,000)

Expenditure FTE Total 1.50 1.50 1.50 1.50

Expenditure Total 100,240 85,484 78,784 264,508

Deflection QTY Total 0 (16) (26) (42)

Benefits Total 0 (100,000) (162,500) (262,500)

TOTAL 100,240 (14,516) (83,716) 2,008

Expenditure FTE Total 4.00 5.00 5.00 4.00

Expenditure Total 242,487 224,115 225,368 691,970

Deflection QTY Total 0 (1,250) (1,750) (3,000)

Benefits Total 0 (30,000) (42,000) (72,000)

TOTAL 242,487 194,115 183,368 619,970

Expenditure Total 0 60,000 60,000 120,000

Deflection QTY Total 0 (524) (1,768) (2,292)

Benefits Total 0 (63,050) (191,302) (254,352)

TOTAL 0 (3,050) (131,302) (134,352)

1,600,546 213,256 (1,157,136) 656,667

Smoking in Pregnancy: 

Provider performance has shown some improvement in terms of significant reduction in lost to follow up. From February to date 93 women are on the incentive scheme with 

26, 4 week quits being achieved. Although the numbers accessing the incentive scheme (126) are reasonable, the conversation rate to 4 week quits is lower than expected. 

There is a variance in view between the provider and commissioner about the level of performance. This will be picked up at the next performance meeting.

Programme will continue to be monitored closely focusing on increasing engagement in the Baby clear program, increasing the number of quits, increasing conversion rate and 

internal management of smoking cessation midwife outcomes. Steering group to be merged with secondary care smoking  cessation programme - steering group to be 

established by PAHT.

Finance: There is a YTD underspend of £23k this is primarily made from a system change and training budget, however it is assumed that this will be contained within year. 

TPI's: 

Smoking at time of delivery (CO validated).

Risk: There are no red risks to report for this intervention. 

Reducing Diabetes: 

The NDPP Programme is already underway and is performing beyond expectations with good engagement with GP practices and high referral rates into the pre-diabetes 

courses. Data is starting to come through from NHSE for this intervention and work is underway to develop a further deep dive to understand the biological affect this is 

having on the patients that successfully attending the course. 

Finance: £68k underspend due to staffing costs which is still bring funded by NHSE. A change control request has been completed to offer this underspend back up to the 

central pot. 

TPI: A review of the outcomes data will help to formalise the TPI and further deflection activity to be picked up from April 2019/20. 

Risk: There are no red risks to report for this intervention. 

Children's Oral Health: 

All recruitment for this project is now compelte, with staff now in place. 

Monthly team meetings are now in place for regular team updates. Quarterly data meetings have been agreed for ongoing monitoring. Steering group in place to take forward 

proposed plans and delviery of the projects, including a Separate private Day nursery, LEA nurseries and reception plans in place to start  programme delivery Sep/October 

2018. 

Updated information  to schools delivered and draft communications ready for the new school term, comms plan in place, all shared with Healthy Schools lead and OHI 

partners.

Finance: YTD underspend of £66k due to delays in recruitment - however, all posts are now in place and this is now contained through the financial reforecast. 

TPI: Deflections not expected until 2019/20. TPI's currently in development. 

Accidents in the Home:

The Intervention will be delivered using transformational funding from 2019/2020.  A meeting is scheduled for 29th August 2018 to discuss maximising the delivery of the 

program .  GMFR are the current deliverers , however due to other commitments are unable to meet the demands for the scheme.  The meeting is to discuss the co-deliver 

with GMFR and Home Start

Finance: Transformation funding from 19/20 as currently funded by Public Health

TPI: Deflections not expected until 2019/20

In Month Achievements / Good practice:

All posts are now recurited to across the Prevention Theme, with Community Outreach and Children's Oral Health now having all posts now in place.

Intervention Name 
Annual Values Mobilisatio

n RAG

Expenditure 

RAG

Deflection 

RAG

Headcount RAG 18/19

Community 

Outreach
11.5 11.5

2.5 2.5

Self Care N/A 1 1

Elderly Oral 

Health
N/A

1.8
Currently 

funded by NHSE

Smoking in 

Pregnancy
N/A 2 2

Reducing 

Diabetes
N/A

Prevention Theme total - All

4 4

Accidents in the 

Home
N/A N/A 0

Funded by 

Public Health

Children's Oral 

Health
N/A

Page 21



2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 3 Years Budget Actual 

Expenditure FTE Total 9.00 9.00 9.00 9.00

Expenditure Total 320,010 318,759 318,759 957,528

Deflection QTY Total (1,919) (4,674) (11,421) (18,014)

Benefits Total (180,582) (477,228) (1,028,458) (1,686,268)

TOTAL 139,428 (158,469) (709,699) (728,740)

Expenditure FTE Total 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00

Expenditure Total 105,000 105,000 105,000 315,000

Deflection QTY Total (1,895) (1,895) (1,895) (5,685)

Benefits Total (197,245) (197,245) (197,245) (591,735)

TOTAL (92,245) (92,245) (92,245) (276,735)

Expenditure FTE Total 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00

TOTAL 28,500 28,500 28,500 85,500

75,683 (222,214) (773,444) (919,975)Access Theme total

Directory of 

services

Housing Triage

The project continues to deliver the unique service  as previously described and receives referrals from an ever increasing base of professionals. Initial evaluation is now completed for housing 

triage project and is complete for the Falls Pilot project  (AKA PRS) , and the social prescribing elements of the Health Rochdale Homes project ( of which the Housing Triage service is an element of 

). 

We are still finalising on the negotiating of 20 new short term accommodation units we still anticipate will be used for both prevention and to facilitate swift discharge from hospital to a range of 

residents, principally those under 55 you and of low risk. This should result in significant savings to LA and improved health and well being to the resident. 

The 2nd Housing triage officer has now been appointed and has an imminent start date. 

Risk: Currently this service is at capacity, which can support 300 households a year, which current deflection targets for A&E exceed this number making this unachievable. This has been escalated 

to the newly appointed Theme lead and discussions are underway to understand a mitigation route for this. 

Finance:  Current expenditure is on track and service at capacity. 

TPI: This intervention is currently working at capacity, however, work is underway to confirm the TPI's and understand the impact of the service to the wider system. 

9Easy Hubs

Mobilisation 

RAG

Deflection 

RAG

Expenditure 

RAG

Housing Triage 

PMO: Hannah Thornton

Intervention Name 
Headcount RAG 

Reporting period: September 2018 Theme: Access

Theme Lead: Tracey 

Harrison

High level description of interventions:

Directory of Services: The Directory of Services project will provide an authoritative online source of information, advice and guidance relating to signposting of health and social care services, 

community services, social groups, wellbeing activities and events. The website provides an holistic assessment tool will also be included along with self - care information.

Housing Triage: The Housing Triage service will support professionals across the Health and Social Care system who are working with patients who are facing difficulties with housing – either 

inadequate housing or no housing being available to them.

Easy Hubs: Four service hubs (Rochdale Infirmary, Middleton Health Centre, Phoenix Centre and Littleborough Health Centre) are being developed to provide a place for people with health and 

social care queries to go to access a community connector and to access information and advice.

Annual Values

Directory of Service

Landing page now in place for the Connecting You service with entries for Community Connectors included in the directory database; work is ongoing on landing pages for each hub in conjunction 

with Family Services support team and Adult Care.

Work has begun on revising the health channel categories resulting in the addition of a range of provider entries.

A Google Analytics training provider has been identified through GMSS and the Informatics Skills Development Network and training sessions are currently being planned; 2 sessions are currently 

planned (26th September and 10th October) with 18 attendees confirmed. 

Website traffic has recovered following the dip at launch and is consistently exceeding the estimated target level (20k page hits per month) – in August there were 28.7k page hits (compared to 

17.3k in August 2017).  

Following Google Analytics training these targets will be revised to be more meaningful in terms of content being accessed.  

Risk: There is currently an overarching theme risk around the delivery of the current targets set for deflections. There is significant work underway to mitigate this through the evaluation 

framework to measure and understand the impact of the prevention programme of work to the system and the local population for Rochdale. 

Finance: Current expenditure is on track. 

TPI: TPI's are currently in development with a plan in place over the next few months for sign-off and reporting mechanism. Google Analytics development should support further with this, which is 

currently showing an increasing number of website hits each month. 

Theme Lead Exec Summary  

All interventions within the Access Theme are fully mobilised with all recruitment in place and expenditure on track. 

All services are performing well with DOS seeing increased monthly website hits of 28k, EASY hubs has now supported over 300 people since the launch in May 2018 and Housing Triage is at 

capacity supporting people with a broad range of Housing needs. 

Further development is underway to further articulate the outcomes data for each intervention to gain a better understanding of the impact to the system and to residents of Rochdale. This will be 

part of the Evaluation Framework and agreement of TPI's.

Programme Mgr: Adam Sutcliffe

Easy Hubs

Service continues to deliver with over 300 people engaged with the service May to August 2018.

Online Health Checker : Meeting with Open Objects on 4th October 2018 to test and review prototype of online assessment tool developed to date. 

Communication plan: ‘Connecting You’ site on Directory of Services being developed; expected date of completion end of September 2018. Official launch of ‘Connecting You’ site incorporating 

Community Connector service to take place beginning of October 2018.

Mental Health Outreach Model Pennine Care Rochdale Infirmary: Clarity required re suitability of sharing existing space at Rochdale Infirmary presently used by Community Connector service; this 

space will now also be the Safe Haven for the Mental Health service project. Discussions are ongoing to resolve this.

Risk: There is currently an overarching theme risk around the delivery of the current targets set for deflections. There is significant work underway to mitigate this through the evaluation 

framework to measure and understand the impact of the prevention programme of work to the system and the local population for Rochdale. 

Finance: Current expenditure is on track with all recruits now in post. 

TPI: Evaluation Framework for Community Connector service in final draft format for use, basic data analysis report framework devised. As above current figures show the service has helped over 

300 people from May-Aug 2018. 

11

9

11

Page 22



2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 3 Years Budget Actual 

Expenditure FTE Total 7.60 7.40 7.20 7.60

Expenditure Total 410,400 243,950 160,750 815,100

Deflection QTY Total (36) (3) (3) (42)

Benefits Total (1,211,250) (1,551,875) (1,955,000) (4,718,125)

Total (800,850) (1,307,925) (1,794,250) (3,903,025)

Expenditure FTE Total 12.00 6.00 6.00 12.00

Expenditure Total 375,444 187,722 187,722 750,888

Total 375,444 187,722 187,722 750,888

Expenditure Total 896,800 289,500 75,000 1,261,300

Primary care Academy Total 896,800 289,500 75,000 1,261,300

Expenditure Total 7,400,000 0 0 7,400,000

Total 7,400,000 0 0 7,400,000

Primary Care total - All 7,871,394 (830,703) (1,531,528) 5,509,163

Intervention High Level Description

Clinical Pharmacists - Clinical pharmacists working with GP practices to support them to reduce inappropriate prescribing and increase efficiency. Pharmacists will work collaboratively and 

closely with practices to support patients with long term conditions, such as COPD/Asthma by tailoring their medications for their needs based on new guidelines. 

Focussed Care Workers - Focused Care Workers work with General Practices across HMR to support people & families with complex health and social care needs that present to GP’s with wider 

psychosocial wellbeing issues, that are not able to be addressed at a GP appointment. 

Theme Lead Exec Summary: 

Clinical Pharmacists: 

The clinical pharmacy project is currently reporting as Red as this service was planned to be fully mobilised from April 2018, however due to delays in the agreement of the service specification 

and room availability in GP practices is extremely limited. The CORE+2 contract requires only that CCG QIPP savings are made in 18/19. There are no technical “work arounds” at this time. 

Therefore, it was agreed that a more flexible approach to this project would be required. It was agreed moving forward  to explore a more multi-skilled model that currently exists in the system 

as a solution to current issues. A rescoping of this project will be required to understand the expenditure and deflections as a result of this change. 

Due to the wider issues raised around recruitment and capacity for this intervention, a meeting was held with Rochdale Health Alliance , One Rochdale , meds optimisation & PMO to discuss the 

best way to move forward.

Headcount RAG 18/19
Intervention Name 

Annual Values Mobilisatio

n RAG

Expenditur

e RAG

Deflection 

RAG

In Month Achievements / Good practice: 

Focussed Care Workers - Referral levels continue to increase from GP Teams where Focussed Care is embedded within the neighbourhoods. Further contact has been made with 3 new practices 

this period, with aim to place workers in these areas by mid October.

Risk: Overall the risks for this intervention are rated as red. A key risk regarding GP’s do not engaging with the clinical pharmacists and the scheme continues, resulting in prescribing 

inappropriately and ultimately not achieving the benefits required.

Finance: There is a YTD underspend of 130k due to delays in mobilisation against the orginal plan.

Strategic Outcome: Medications and Prescribing (Indirect relationship)

Proposed TPI: The overall position of all GP practices in achieving prescribing targets and the % of practices achieving financial targets associated with transformation monies.

Measurement target: Measured quarterly.  Aim for all practices to achieve adjusted £ per APU target.

TPI's / Reason for measurement: Clinical Pharmacists will be reviewing medications across GP practices in order to reduce overspend on medications especially where patients are receiving 

multiple medications.  Whilst reducing spend, this may also impact upon system pressures for patients over prescribed medications. Working with the performance team to incorporate this into 

the TPI dashboard for ongoing monthly monitoring. 

Risk: No red risks reported.

Finance: Expenditure is fixed due to contract cost. It was originally estimated that 12 to 16 focussed care workers would provide full-borough coverage, with the provider working to recruit 16 

focussed care workers before the end of the financial year. This does not effect expenditure because this is within the scope of the outcomes-based contract. A further round of recruitment is 

planned for Oct 18. 

TPI's: There are no deflections associated with this Intervention, however it is expected that it will impact on the A&E deflections identified in the Prevention theme. There have been 284 

individuals/families supported by Focussed Care workers (between 15 practices), with an 18/19 target of 800. A further deep dive into this data is due ot start e.g., to quantify the type of support 

being utilised, (Provider to develop and share further statistics and findings from data as released), and a report will be released Oct. 2018. 

Theme Lead Exec Summary: 

Focussed Care Workers: 

Focused Care Practitioners are continuing to settle and grow into the role. Foundational reviews complete for earlier cohort. Referral levels continue to increase from GP Teams where Focused 

Care is embedded within the neighbourhoods. Further contact has been made with 3 new practices this period, with aim to place workers in these areas by mid October to complete allocation 

at current recruitment level. A Commissioner Provider Assurance meeting is scheduled for October to review progress, outputs and uptake as well as aiming to develop a plan of referral and care 

for those patients and practices who do not require full practitioner support. Some reallocation of workforce in order to maximize coverage to current capacity of 22 sites across the Borough by 

October 2018. (Covering loss of new recruit and extending to new practices). Work is also in the pipeline for the provider to prepare systems to produce statistics and data to support monitoring 

and performance and an internal review of performance data will take place in October.

Reporting period: September 2018 Theme: Primary Care Theme Lead: Shaju Ahmed 

(Focussed Care Workers) / Keith 

Pearson (Clinical Pharmacists)

Delivery Mgr: Shaju Ahmed 

(Focussed Care Workers) /

Keith Pearson (Clinical 

Pharmacists)

PMO: Emily Vynne

1.8
Clinical 

Pharmacists

Focussed Care 

Workers
G N/A N/A

R R R 7.6

16 10.5

(LCO) CORE +2

(LCO) Primary care 

Academy

Page 23



High level description of interventions:

Living with & Beyond Cancer: 

Proactive care planning and support for people living with cancer, and who have survived cancer. Earlier diagnosis of cancer project introduces ‘straight to CT’ and ‘vague symptoms pathways, which 

enables patients to be referred for a CT scan to detect cancer earlier. Cancer -haematology blood withdrawal project aims to reduce unwarranted variation in clinical practice. 

(IECP) Integrated Elective Care Pathway: 

Partnership of 4 providers delivering integrated, end-to-end pathways of care for ENT, gastroenterology gynaecology, orthopaedics and urology. Supported by advice and guidance, single point of 

access and clinical pathway improvement. 

IECP2: 

This is the second phase to integrate and streamline access to elective care looking at the specialties within Ophthalmology whole-system transformation, Integrated MSK partnership, general 

surgery and referral (SEEM). 

Long Term Conditions Acute:

This intervention uses Right Care and other data to identify areas of variation in service activity. The projects aims to work with providers to reduce the variation and increase the efficiency of the 

service provided. Specialties currently include Cardiology single point of access and pathway improvement, Digestive disorders transformation, Respiratory transformation and Neurology. 

Pain Services: 

Implement a new community pain service providing a range of evidence-based biological, psychological and social interventions. Support appropriate patients to transition from a traditional medical-

model of pain management to the new service. Work with GP practices and providers to reduce opiate prescribing.

Reporting period: September 2018 Theme: Planned Care  Theme Lead: Karen Kenton Prog Mgr: Jennifer Hopes PMO: Emily Vynne

Theme Lead Exec Summary: 

The Planned Care programme is currently red for overall theme status. Note that there is an ongoing review of this workstream (focussing on the future elective transformation described in IECP2 

and LTC Acute, with support from the emerging Elective Transformation Delivery Board.) An interim Senior Commissioning Resource has been brought in to review the whole Planned Care agenda 

and will develop new plans for all interventions included within this theme with a focus on the QIPP cost savings proposals.

The Living With and Beyond Cancer (Cancer Pathways):

The recruitment process has completed for all staff except the welfare rights officer, a contract is being developed with Citizens Advice for this role. The admin worker has commenced in post.

Due to recruitment delays the service implementation will commence  1st October 18 with pilot sites identified at Rochdale Central and Middleton with a plan to roll out to all area’s by January 2019.

Team office base is set up at Rochdale infirmary. Meetings have been held with local Libraries and it has been agreed that drop-in sessions will be available in libraries across each neighbourhood.

A press release will be sent out to promote the LWBC Model in September and a service leaflet has also been designed. GP's in relevant surgeries have been involved in the development and 

promotion of the new service model.

Early Diagnosis of Cancer

Straight to CT: 

An interim Project Officer has been identified to support the delivery of the this NES pilot which proposes to ensure that patients suspected of pancreatic cancer are sent directly for a CT scan to 

diagnose at an earlier stage.  Initial conversations have taken place with the HMR Clinical Lead and NES commissioners to understand current progress and scope of the services. 

Currently, both Oldham and Rochdale have sought approval through governance and are ready to develop the new service model. Also, a task and finish group has been set up to bring colleagues 

together to understand how we can proceed at a NES level. This group is also considering if other CCG’s will have the opportunity to join this collaborative approach at a later stage.

Vague Symptoms Pathway: 

Project lead met with colleagues from GM/Oldham around a joined up approach for the Ace 2 pilot to be extended to Rochdale patients. A meeting is taking place to understand the 

capacity/resource for this on 12th September 2018. There has been limited progress on this intervention throughout August as the start date for the Nurse running this service is yet to be confirmed.

IECP:

The over performance of the IECP contract has been tabled and discussed at the IECP Board. A plan for the IECP over performance is to be developed to understand the activity and to ensure that the 

over performance is not due to data inaccuracies. The new IECP plan will be developed by the end of September.

MIAA have been instructed by the CCG to undertake a clinical audit of IECP pathways for Trauma & Orthopaedic (T&O), ENT and urology with PAHT and BMI. For T&O the audit will focus on the case 

mix difference between PAHT and BMI. For ENT and urology it will focus on the reasons for differences in surgical conversion rates.

PAHT are continuing to work with IECP partners to reduce duplication of diagnostic tests when patients are onward referred, by ensuring scan images and reports are routinely downloaded to PAHT’s 

systems ahead of the follow-up consultation.

PAHT are working with all sub-contractors to agree outcomes-based reporting for IECP in line with the CQUIN – this report will be available in September.

Further refinement of the KPI dashboard is ongoing.

Additionally, an audit of the onward referral processes, including identifying areas of avoidable duplication in assessment and diagnostic tests, is on-going and will inform service improvement plans

PAHT have prepared a proposal for CCG Chief Finance Officers to fund one of the partners (InHealth) to deliver Advice and Guidance for Orthopaedics and ENT in phase 1, with Gastroenterology and 

Urology to follow in phase 2. This is anticipated to launch in October.

Finance: No spend YTD, compared with planned YTD spend of £62k. This is due to the fact that the service has not yet mobilised and is due to commence in January 2019. Conversations to take place 

with finance colleagues to understand how this will be developed at a NES level. 

Risk: There is a red risk relating to delays in implementation due to a Nurse leaving the service and providing adequate training to the new post holder. Additionally, there is a red risk for this 

intervention relating to the overall deflections not being delivered until the service is mobilised, which is likely to be January 2019. 

TPI's: TPI's are currently in draft form and are in the process of being finalised with a reporting mechanism and dashboard to understand the current position for direct and indirect deflections. 

Finance: N/A, there is no expenditure associated with this project. 

Risk: There is a red risk that there is an in year overspend on the  IECP contract resulting in the non-achievement of the anticipated savings for the planned care theme. A plan is being developed to 

review the accuracy of the data for IECP to determine if there is a true overspend or whether data issues/duplication are the issue.

TPI's: A workshop has been held to develop TPIs, however, further development is required with PMO to confirm and incorporate into the dashboard. 

Finance: No spend YTD, compared with planned YTD spend of £59k due to a delay in recruitment, however deflections are scheduled to commence in October 2018.

Risk: No red risks to report. Although service implementation has been delayed until October, it is anticipated that the same number of deflections will be delivered over a shorter timeframe.

TPI's: TPI's are currently in draft form and are in the process of being finalised with a reporting mechanism and dashboard to understand the current position for direct and indirect deflections. 

Page 24



2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 3 Years Budget Actual 

Expenditure FTE Total 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00

Expenditure Total 176,409 176,220 176,220 528,849

Deflection QTY Total (235) (235) (235) (704)

Benefits Total (215,870) (215,870) (215,870) (647,610)

TOTAL (39,461) (39,650) (39,650) (118,762)

Expenditure Total 186,560 186,560 186,560 559,680

Deflection QTY Total (559) (1,000) (2,980) (4,539)

Benefits Total (62,267) (111,440) (332,091) (505,798)

TOTAL 124,293 75,120 (145,531) 53,882

Deflection QTY Total (2,850) (2,850) (2,850) (8,550)

Benefits Total (1,207,301) (1,207,301) (1,207,301) (3,621,902)

TOTAL (1,207,301) (1,207,301) (1,207,301) (3,621,902)

Deflection QTY Total (132) (850) (1,000) (1,982)

Benefits Total (42,209) (348,533) (407,460) (798,201)

TOTAL (42,209) (348,533) (407,460) (798,201)

Deflection QTY Total (1,068) (2,040) (6,176) (9,284)

Benefits Total (192,463) (289,245) (878,626) (1,360,334)

TOTAL (192,463) (289,245) (878,626) (1,360,334)

Deflection QTY Total (3,933) (5,244) (5,244) (14,421)

Benefits Total (1,072,224) (1,429,632) (1,429,632) (3,931,489)

TOTAL (1,072,224) (1,429,632) (1,429,632) (3,931,489)

(2,429,365) (3,239,241) (4,108,200) (9,776,805)

N/A

Planned Care total

N/A N/A

Pain Services A N/A G N/A N/A

Long Term Acute / 

RightCare
A N/A R

N/A N/AIECP2 R N/A R

IECP A N/A R

4

N/A

4

Early Diagnosis

of Cancer
G A A N/A N/A

Living With & 

Beyond Cancer
R A A

Pain:

Continued implementation planning for new NICE/EUR guidance  (NG59) with partner at NES level, and focussed HMR discussions with IPMS and PAHT and associated EUR policy on chronic back pain 

management. Updated trajectory from PAHT shows that 80% of eligible patients have now been transition from PAHT to IPMS. A meeting is scheduled in September with PAHT, IPMS and CCG to plan 

phase 2 of the transfer (remaining patients, complex patients and medicines optimisation cohort). The CQUIN scheme has been agreed with IPMS to support primary care education on self 

management of chronic pain (Tier 1 level support for people with chronic pain).

In Month Achievements / Good practice:

- Communication and engagement with local Library services has taken place in August to promote the Living With and Beyond Cancer Service Model.

- The Early Diagnosis of Cancer Service Model has been approved in Oldham and HMR and work is underway to work in a collaborative way, giving opportunity to other CCG's to join if appropriate at 

a later date.

Annual Values Mobilisatio

n RAG

Expenditur

e RAG

Deflection 

RAG

Headcount RAG 18/19

Finance: N/A, there is no expenditure associated with this project. 

Risk: There are currently no red risks to report for this intervention. 

TPI's: A workshop is yet to be arranged to develop the TPI's for this intervention. 

IECP2 & Long Term Conditions Acute/Right Care:

The current focus relates to the re-scoping of the IECP2 and LTC Acute/RightCare interventions.

Finance: N/A, there is no expenditure associated with this project. 

Risk: There are several red risks associated with this intervention, mainly around capacity within the provider and resource to delivering the outcomes required and clinical buy-in to deliver at scale. 

Through the change control process, this will be looked at in more detail as to how we can prioritise and plan the intervention aims. 

TPI's: A workshop is yet to be arranged to develop the TPI's for this intervention. 

Page 25



2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 3 Years Budget Actual 

Expenditure FTE Total 30.50 27.50 5.00 30.50

Expenditure Total 1,385,218 474,494 185,930 2,045,642

Deflection QTY Total (676) (679) (682) (2,037)

Benefits Total (524,586) (647,259) (717,226) (1,889,072)

TOTAL 860,632 (172,765) (531,296) 156,570

Expenditure FTE Total 9.00 8.00 8.00 9.00

Expenditure Total 386,385 386,384 386,384 1,159,153

Deflection QTY Total (1,720) (2,760) (6,036) (10,516)

Benefits Total (363,219) (620,567) (863,417) (1,847,202)

TOTAL 23,166 (234,182) 477,032 688,049

883,797 406,948 1,008,329 (531,479)

Executive Summary 

All posts are now recruited to for the Children's theme.

There is an overall underspend across the Children's theme mainly due to delays in recruitment, however, plans are in place to mitigate this and are currently under approval with finance 

colleagues. For One System, this involves the potential to extend the enabling posts by 6 months to the end of September 2019. For PNP a change request to utilise the remaining 

underspend of the budget for a new service was approved in July by Finance and Strategic Programme Director. the additional 3 PNP's are all in post and commence clinical skills training 

in mid Sept 2018. 

There has been some slippage in the approval of the contract element of the programme through the Alliance Model paper which is now due to go to October ICB meeting for final 

approval. This is to ensure alignment to the LCO developments. However, this does not affect the ongoing work at an operational level of the programme, which is showing excellent 

increase in the numbers of Early Help Assessments in the borough. From Apr-Aug 18 the service has reached 1126 assessments, which surpasses the total number of assessments last year 

alone. 

Mobilisation 

RAG

Deflection 

RAG

Expenditure 

RAG

Headcount RAG 

One System 

Approach 
27.5

Intervention Name 
Annual Values

8 8
Paediatrics Nurse 

Practice 

Children's Theme total

Prog Mgr: Kylie Thornton & Charlotte 

Mitchell

PMO: Hannah ThorntonTheme Lead: Karen Kenton

High level description of interventions:

One System Approach: This intervention will implement a Family Services Model (FSM) to deliver a whole system approach for children, young people and families. An alliance 

contract/agreement model is being explored as the vehicle for delivery. 

Paediatric Nurse Practitioners (PNP): The enhancement to the Children’s Community Nursing Team’s Paediatric Nurse Practitioner Service will support the focus on prevention, early help 

and delivering more supportive services in the community, with hospital being seen as a last resort. 

Reporting period: September 2018 Theme: Children's 

Key messages to ICB:  One System Approach

This intervention is currently reporting as Amber, this is due to the revised timeline which has delayed the presentation of the final Alliance proposal to the Integrated Commissioning 

Board. A refreshed timeline has also been presented to the Family Service Partnership Board, it has been recognised that in order to secure positive relationships, which are crucial to in 

the development of a successful Alliance, it is likely that more time be required to fully explore the complexities of the process.

Both of the specialist HYM posts have been established within the Complex Early Help and Safeguarding Hub, a multi- agency pathway has now been agreed and signed off, this clearly 

demonstrates how #Thrive will engage with the early help locality teams and the wider Family Service Model. 

Next period we will be looking to develop a stock-take process to understand how the key elements of the  Family Services Model are progressing in line with what we expected it to 

achieved the stock-take will include qualitative and quantitative  information  and will aim to unpick the success factors alongside understanding the lack of impact that the programme is 

currently making to reduce the number of care packages.

Risk: There are currently no red risks to report for this intervention

Finance:  There is currently a YTD underspend of 147k driven by salary underspends, through the inability to recruit MH roles and delays and delays in costs associated with alliance 

mapping/ training. However, all posts are now in place. 

TPI's: TPI's have been worked through and agreed by programme managers and theme lead at a TPI workshop and are now awaiting submission and agreement at ICB. The draft TPIs are 

as follows:

An increase of Early Help Assessments 

Number of looked after children

Key messages to ICB: Paediatric Nurse Practitioners (PNP)

Amendments to the project plan have  supported the recruitment of  an additional 3 Paediatric Nurse Practitioners to Band 6 Trainee posts. Staff are now in post (06/09/18). Trainee 

PNP’s will begin the 10 week clinical skills training in Liverpool  this month (September 18). Training will run until December when post holders will become Band 7 Paediatric Nurse 

Practitioners. The PNP theme will be at full capacity by January 2019. Deflections have been re scoped in response. 

In order to mitigate against the slippage in deflections for 2018/19 and to maximize the delivery of the project, a change to project has been requested and agreed. Failure to recruit has 

provided an opportunity within the budget. Part of the under spend will commission a new service via the voluntary sector that focuses on  changing the behaviours of parents/children 

that repeatedly present at urgent Care/A and E. This project will allow us to further understand such behaviours and support the wider identification of early help need  in support of the 

wider children’s theme. Post holder will sit within locality teams and work across health and social care boundaries in sign posting to and coordinating community care, delivering 

interventions to reduce parental anxiety and increase self management. Job Descriptions have been agreed. A letter of Intent has been sent to the provider (Family Action) and the post 

has been advertised. Interviews are to take place on the 13th of September 18. A number of additional risks regarding project amendments are to be factored into the risk register and 

managed via performance manager. Project plans have been updated in response to the above. Agreement has been gained via GM to support the full evaluation of the  Family Services 

model including the PNP theme. 

Risk: Overall intervention risk is rated as amber as there is just one red risk to be highlighted: provider failure to reach numbers of contacts specified 

Mitigating actions - Recruitment risks have been mitigated with the service at staff capacity from January 2019. Also in Jan 2019, the service will undertake a robust communications 

activity with GP's and partners in order to advertise the service and make aware of referral process

Finance: There is currently a YTD underspend of 69k driven by failure to recruit full team of Band 7 Nurses. However, a change control process has now been initiated to repatriate to a 

new service that supports families. 

TPIs: 

Activity data has began to be collected by the provider and is ready to flow. There has been a further delay in data flow to a change in staff (provider) that failed to be communicated. It is 

anticipated that full deflection will be realised in January 19  in line with full recruitment . PNP activity data: There were 221 contacts in April ; 279 contacts in May 2018; 223 in June; 161 

in July ( 2 PNP’s in post). The reduction over the summer month is to be investigated further but is thought to be due to staff holidays and less demand over this period. 

In Month Achievements / Good practice:

We continue to gain positive feedback in relation to the enabler team and their support to partners, children and families; each locality lead has developed a process to gain feedback 

from partners on a on-going basis. Each of the locality teams has developed a feedback process for professionals; below is some recent feedback from Positive Choices; 

“The early help team where quick to act, they acted in a professional and supportive manner… they were quick develop plans and made sure the family was involved in the process…. “

27.5

Page 26



Risk: The service model and specification for the Safe Haven are required before the Estates Theme can progress with the remodelling of the EASY HUB (daytime service) space, which will be 

utilised for the Safe Haven during the night from 5pm - 8am. The remodelling works are likely to take 4-6 weeks to complete, however there is a risk that the service mobilisation will not happen 

until January 2019. PCFT are developing a detailed specification for the remodelling works at the EASY Hubs at RI and all recruitment will commence so that all staff are in post by January 2018.

Budget vs. Expenditure: The YTD figures show an overall underspend of £147k. Plan reviewed to incorporated the successful awarding of ETTF funds that pay for budgeted expenditure as well as a 

detailed review of requirements.

Reporting period: September 2018 Theme Leads: 

ESTATES - Sarah Butler

WORKFORCE - Rosemary 

Barker

IM&T - Paul Chadwick

PMO: Emily VynneTheme: ENABLERS

Theme Lead Exec Summary: ESTATES

EASY Hubs: Community Connectors form part of the ‘EASY Hub’ offer. This will be a two staged approach with stage 1 being 2 community connectors located in 2 consult rooms in each of the 4 

locations and stage 2 being the full brief accommodated (if this is required). Stage 1 is now complete), a review will now be undertaken (as part of monitoring the TPI’s) and this will help to 

confirm/challenge whether stage 2 is still required. Stage 1 is live and staff have been moved in. Formal occupancy arrangements have been agreed for the 4 locations.  Works to sign off leases are 

due to be complete by September 2018. For stage 2, an Outline Business Case (OBC) has been drafted and issued to the Strategic Estates Group (SEG). It will be tabled at the next EASY Steering 

Group. Phase 2 will only be progressed after a review of the current service has been undertaken. In addition, some Better Care Funding (BCF) has been allocated to enable some of the capital 

remodelling works, if required. Other options for utilising this funding can  be explored via the Locality Asset Review in line with the BCF funding criteria.

Mental Health Living Well Hub: The service model for the Living Well Hub (Day Service) is also being finalised. A long list of potential locations has been identified. There is the potential for the 

Living Well Hub to be offered as an outreach service alongside the INTs and use Whitehall St as a base for staff. Estates capacity within these locations to be confirmed once the service lead has 

been appointed to scope detail.

Mental Health Safe Haven: A Mental Health Living Well Hub and Safe Haven Steering Group has been established to progress this work. The location for the Safe Haven is planning to make use of 

EASY Hubs space at the Rochdale Infirmary site, but during the night (from 5pm onwards). Meeting to be arranged with the council to discuss interdependencies with Community Connectors in 

order to produce operational plan. Indicative capital and revenue costs have been received but require finalising. Costs to be confirmed W/C 10/09/18. Approx. 4-8 weeks to complete remodelling 

works once agreed. There is potential to access the BCF for the capital requirements; revenue options are being explored. 

Urgent Care GP Streaming: A review of the Urgent Care Centre is currently underway. The outcome of this review has been be shared with HMR CCG and will help inform the Urgent Care GP 

Streaming offer.

Locality Asset Review: The Stage 1 Report has been issued, Stage 2 is ongoing and will be presented by September. Capacity modelling and collating associated data but there are some gaps e.g. 

future population projections by Neighbourhood. Also need to clarify existing and future activity (incorporating deflections) by theme / sector. This is key for the spatial modelling to assess how 

much space (and what type) may be needed in the future compared to what is available to identify any gaps. Stakeholder engagement is ongoing and links have been made with the INTs, 

Township Officers and Cllrs.

Theme Lead Exec Summary: WORKFORCE

Following feedback from GE Consulting and the latest LWTG meeting, 4 subgroups have been established and stakeholders identified for each of the 4 areas of the Workforce Theme. These 

include: Culture, Brand & Identity, Hard to Fill Posts and Career Pathways.

Culture: The project action plan has been updated and team development progression is focussed on Brand and Culture. Sessions for individual teams are scheduled for September and October 

and a whole team briefing in early November.

Brand & Identity: The action plan has been updated and the subgroup has agreed to begin with high level statement to be included in recruitment literature encompassing our place unique selling 

proposition.

Hard to Fill Posts: Following feedback from workshops, steps to identify hard to fill posts are underway from each service. Perceived reasons for the lack of recruitment success are also being 

established. Future staffing requirements are to be identified. Once posts are identified, a process of recommending potential Apprenticeships and recruitment solutions will be undertaken and an 

action plan developed.

Career Pathways: Following feedback from the GE workshop and latest LWTG meeting,  it has been established that in the first instance that the CP group will merge with the Hard to Fill group as 

it was identified that there was a lot of cross over. The next steps are to establish the relevant attendees for the sub group meeting and to develop actions in order to further progress.

Risk: There is a risk that the hard to fill posts could potentially be due to national shortages on key role types. Escalated to the Workforce Board if the issues cannot be resolved through the sub 

group meetings.

Budget vs. Expenditure: The YTD figures show an overall underspend of £68k.

Page 27



Budget Actual 

Theme Lead Exec Summary: IM&T

Graphnet: The majority of technical work has been completed with remaining tasks during September currently on track as planned. Graphnet “train the trainer” and system admin training has 

been completed. Data Sharing Agreements have been revised following comments from stakeholder groups (IG leads and LMC) and are currently under final review.  These will enable data feeds 

to be activated and validated as a precursor to going live.  Delays around the sharing framework have introduced the potential for slight slippage resulting in go live early October rather than 

September as planned.   This will include Primary Care, Acute, Mental Health and Adults Social Care integration with Children's and Community sharing as a fast follower.  Pennine Care are 

experiencing some delays around agreeing datasets to contribute; this may delay their feed into Graphnet but will not prevent them having access from go-live and the feed can be activated when 

ready.

Directory of Services: The Directory traffic is now above pre-upgrade levels compared to last year.  A Wellbeing Checker development has been ordered as Phase 2 work and due to begin in 

October (date TBC).  Google analytics training has arranged and stakeholders have been invited.  Health content hierarchy review work continues.  Draft Governance documentation is not yet 

finalised but this has no impact as it is good practice rather than mandated.

EASY Hubs: Some problems have been reported around device connectivity via wi-fi at the hub sites due to the way the council VPN operates through public wifi. The planned introduction of 

Govroam Wi-Fi is expected to alleviate these problems and is due in September but some technical issues are currently being addressed by GMSS. The council’s IT manager is looking into an 

interim remote access option using Citrix.  The Hubs are operating on an outreach basis as part of a phased approach to enable full service mobilisation.  Plans around a Mental health Safe Haven 

at the Infirmary may displace the community connectors which would potentially require IT work in an alternative location, this is not yet verified.

INT EMIS Community Project: INT EMIS Community Project is underway however has been slightly delayed and the go live date is anticipated to be in October 2018.

GM Funding for Mobile Working: Primary Care Tablets are in stock and deployment commences 17/9/18. Social Care mobile working equipment in stock and being deployed. Pennine Care have 

begun to deploy mobile devices to support community based working across the locality. Pennine Acute have tablets for EMIS Community and these are being deployed ahead of system go live.

Enabler Programme 
Mobilisation 

RAG

Expenditure 

RAG

Deflection 

RAG

Headcount RAG 18/19

Risk: The INT EMIS Community System 'go live' date is currently on track for October 2018 but due to previous delays, there is risk of slippage due to resource issues at PAHT, further assurance has 

been requested from PAHT to reduce this likelihood.

Budget vs. Expenditure: The YTD figures show an overall underspend of £309k.

3 1

WORKFORCE A A N/A 3 3

ESTATES G A N/A

7 3IM&T A A N/A

Page 28



One Rochdale Health & Care 
Transformation Scheme 

Highlight Reports 
 
 
 
 

    
 

 
 

September for August 2018   

P
age 29



2 

The ORHC Leadership Group acknowledges and has responsibility for monitoring progress of ORHC (LCO) led schemes. 

Significant work has been undertaken and is ongoing to take all ORHC (LCO) projects through the confirm & challenge, ‘Black 

Hat’ process.  It is anticipated that this will be completed by early Aug which is slightly delayed from the end of July due to 

availability and annual leave of attendees. Of note for August’s data: 
 

• INT- Enhanced Respiratory – Mobilisation is currently amber due to ongoing recruitment but referrals are coming through and 

deflections being  over achieved for ED and NEL but under for OP. The service is working strategically with system wide partners with 

an aim to reduce A&E admissions, currently focusing on children's asthma and COPD. 

• INT- Falls/ Borough Wide Therapy- Mobilisation is currently amber due to ongoing recruitment to two WTE Physio’s. Alternative 

recruitment options are being explored. The waits for Physio therapy in the neighborhood teams with integrated therapists are 

reducing. Deflections are assessed as being  RED due to under delivery against target.  However ED = 1% above those seen in 17/18 and 

NELs = -4.9% versus same period in 17/18. 

• ITS Expanded Service (excluded CHES) – Mobilisation for this intervention is currently green. A communication strategy is being 

developed to promote the service to GP’s and patients within the locality. 

• HEATT Service- HEATT service has 1 12 hour, 7 day vehicle mobilised and is showing deflections exceeding targets by 71% for ED 

deflections and 24% for NELs. However due to target increases in Oct, it is projecting a year end under delivery unless a second vehicle 

is mobilised.  All attempts to deliver a second vehicle are being explored. The service has also been shortlisted for a HS award. 

• D2A- The D2A service is over achieving against targets using 16/17 baseline. D2A Home in a Day Service has been shortlisted for a HSJ 

award. The pathway still continues, with a good flow of patients from hospital. Scrutiny on individuals once in the community needs to 

continue to ensure time frames for final destinations of individuals are completed within 14 days  

• Enhanced Carers – Overall RAG is green for August. No deflections were required for 18/19, however the service expects that it will 

be able to prove deflections this year, following discussions at the Black Hat.Ongoing contract meetings and provider reporting is 

scheduled.  

• Core+2: Current mobilistation, Outcome and Expenditure RAG is amber as contract agreement discussions are still ongoing. 

Mobilisation against plan is ongoing, work this month has focused on the launch of Primary Care Academy on 13th September.  Resource 

RAG is green as all staff in post. Core + 2 Event happened on 14/08/18 with over 90 attendees from the majority of practices. Central 

Rochdale CP+2 event scheduled 25th September which will focus on increasing screening uptake. Contract partnership meetings are 

scheduled in to resolve the contract negotiations. Weekly review of progress against practice based indicators are in place to resolve 

any highlight and resolve any issues not being picked up. Changes to prescribing indicators have been agreed.  

• Primary Care Academy: Current mobilistation, Outcome and Expenditure RAG is amber as contract agreement discussions are still 

ongoing. Work this month has focused on the launch of PCA on 13th September.  Resource RAG is green as all staff in post. There also 

has been a successful bid for national funding to support development of 2 GP Fellowship posts and Physician Associate Trainees 

started  on week commencing 3rd September 2018.  

 

 

 

P
age 30



3 

• Primary care/Urgent Care Interface- Members of the core Board are looking at integrated neighbourhood teams over a 24 / 7 period 

which will look at redesign of urgent care interface. Timescale for work September – March 2019. Highlight report data in RED, pending 

updated reporting from October that reflects the redesign. 

• High Cost Placements/Shared Lives- Black Hat session held in August resulting in actions to move project forward including a 

commissioner/provider discuss the capacity of the scheme to expand.  The ability of the project to deliver deflections and outcomes in 

18/19 is limited and therefore the project is  RAG rated as Red.  The second black hat session is planned to finalise the next steps. 

• Complex Dependency Mini Hub  - The ten case study review  indicated significant concerns, overlap, duplication  with this scheme 

and this has led to Directorate level involvement which will ultimately impact on the outcome of this project. However, it is unlikely that 

we will be able to conclude this work until December 2018 and it is currently being worked through at the Black Hat meetings. The RAG 

status for this project is RED. 

• Substance Misuse – All mobilisation, resource, outcome and expenditure RAG’s amber due to staff not being in post therefore there is a 

risk to delivery of deflection targets. Recruitment process is underway and discussion regarding rolling funding into the next financial year 

to accommodate this has begun.  

• Domiciliary Care – RAG is green and on track for July, the scheme is currently meeting deflections and seeing a reduction in the number 

of care packages.  

• Care Homes in INT – Mobilisation RAG has moved from RED to AMBER, as although there is a delay in recruitment of a full 

neighbourhood nursing team through RHA; recruitment has been achieved for a proportion of the nurses who are due to start on 10th 

September which supports scheme mobilisation.  Whilst the CHES element of the scheme is realising deflections, the Outcome RAG has 

been changed to AMBER following challenge of the outpatient element of deflections at Black Hat Session and the delay in recruiting the 

neighbourhood nurses which resulted in the service not being mobilized until July. 

• Night Service - Deflections have been disaggregated from the Palliative care & EOL project, agreed at the Black Hat event. Further to 

this, and following approval of the change request submission that some recruitment from Palliative Care & EOL will also move into this 

project. Interviews scheduled for beginning of September for these posts however it is unlikely that these posts will be in place by 

October. Soft launch for home care aspect of this service scheduled 24th Sept.  

 

P
age 31



4 

 

• Palliative Care and EOL – Mobilisation RAG has gone from red to amber as project delivery is on track. Expenditure RAG has 

gone from red to amber aligned to project mobilisation.  

• Mental Health Out of Hospital Offer – 

• Living Well Hub – Remains amber for this month, service manager in post and remaining recruitment underway. 

• Enhanced Access and Clozapine in the Community – Scheme has gone from amber to green as it is fully mobilised. 

• AMHP - Remains amber for this month, staffing issues are currently being worked through. 

• Mental Health Urgent Care Offer –Safe Haven  - Whilst RAG status remains unchanged there has been progress in 

recruitment of staff to provide an alternate service offer until estates issues are resolved, which have been escalated and 

prioritised by all parties.   

• Primary Care in MH INT- The principle Psychologist is in post and has access to hot desking at Middleton but doesn't have 

access to consultation rooms. Options for this are being explored. Trauma training delivery package has been developed along 

with a training flyer which has been sent out to INT teams to book onto training dates scheduled in until January 2019. 

P
age 32



Overall scheme RAG ratings – Sept RE August 2018 

Scheme 
Mobilisation 

RAG 

Expenditur

e RAG 
Outcome RAG  

Resource 

RAG 

Of Note to the Board 

(i.e. areas not Green and 

reason why) 

Controls/Mitigations 

INT – Enhanced 

Respiratory 

Deflections  over delivering 

for ED and NEL but under 

for OP 6th Day – recruitment 

ongoing. Underspent  

Increasing awareness of service 

to increase referrals. Av referrals 

in 17/18 = 45 per month but 

target = 42 NEL deflections per 

month which is higher than ED 

deflections 

INT – 

Falls/Borough wide 

Therapy 

Due to recruitment on going 

for 2wte physio’s. 

Deflections against target 

are 40% behind plan for 

NEL and  ED activity has 

increased by 1% v 17/18 

and has not deflected any 

activity YTD 

 

Exploring rotational posts with 

ITS for Therapists.  

ITS – Expanded 

Service (excluded 

CHES)  

Failure to achieve deflection 

targets. NEL deflections -

32.5%. Vacancy < 5%. 

Recruitment underway 

 

Continue to promote service.   

TPIs to be agreed to monitor 

progress and efficacy of 

intervention. 

HEATT Service 
Fully recruited – PAT 

staffing 

Discharge 2 

Assess (joint 

scheme with RBC) 

Fully recruited 
Please note deflections are 

against a 16/17 baseline 

Enhanced Carers 

(joint scheme with 

RBC) 

No Deflections 

planned in 18/19 

P
age 33



Overall scheme RAG ratings – Sept RE August 2018 
Scheme 

Mobilisation 

RAG 

Expenditure 

RAG 
Outcome RAG  

Resource 

RAG 

Of Note to the Board 

(i.e. areas not Green and 

reason why) 

Controls/Mitigations 

Core+2 

Mobilisation 

underway  

 

Funding 

flows in 

place 

Contract discussions on 

going 

Expenditure – funding flows 

to practices in place and 

active 

Work progressing to deliver 

outcomes as per agreed 

mobilisation plans 

Primary Care 

Academy 

Mobilisation 

underway  

 

Funding 

flows in 

place 

Contract discussions on 

going 

Expenditure – funding flows 

to practices in place and 

active 

Work progressing to deliver 

outcomes as per agreed 

mobilisation plans 

Primary 

Care/Urgent Care 

interface redesign 

work I is currently underway to re - scope to Primary 

Care model offer 

 

High Cost 

Placements – 

Shared Lives 

 

There are significant 

concerns that this project will 

not deliver the intended 

outcomes anticipated at the 

outset. 

 

Complex 

Dependency Mini 

Hub 

From the outset this project 

design was inappropriate in 

terms of delivery of health 

outcomes. The team work 

more with complex 

individuals/families and 

those likely to commit 

nuisance/ASB/criminal 

offences.  

The issues are being worked 

through the black hat process. 

There is current capacity within 

existing staff  to deal with the 

service despite recruitment 

being not likely to happen.  

P
age 34



Overall scheme RAG ratings – Sept RE August 2018 

Scheme 
Mobilisation 

RAG 

Expendit

ure RAG 

Outcome 

RAG 

Resource 

RAG 

Of Note to the Board 

(i.e. areas not Green and reason 

why) 

Controls/Mitigations 

Substance 

misuse 

Due to staff not being in post, current 

year deflections are unlikely to be 

achieved. Currently exploring 

alternative options to meet this target. 

Recruitment is currently 

underway with interviews 

scheduled this month. 

Domiciliary 

Care 

Care Home in 

INT 

Awaiting RHA 

recruitment 

Due to start 

July 18 

Awaiting RHA 

recruitment 

Elements of the project are on track 

however some recruitment to the 

neighbourhood nurse team remains 

outstanding. CHES element of scheme 

up and running delivering deflection, 

but RHA element is delayed therefore 

AMBER Mobilisation and Deflection 

Ongoing with recruitment activity 

to enable scheme to mobilise. 

Night Service 

Project 

Due to start 

Oct 18 

Posts are out 

to advert  

(from w/c 

13.08) 

Deflections have been disaggregated 

from the Palliative care & EOL project, 

agreed at the Black Hat event. Further 

to this, some recruitment has also 

moved into this project.  

Ongoing with recruitment activity 

to enable scheme to mobilise. 

Operational and contract 

meetings in place. 

Palliative Care 

& EOL 

Mobilisation – project now on track for 

delivery. 

Meetings arranged with 

providers to set clear 

performance targets for the GSF 

facilitator. 

Deflections need to be 

transitioned to project 4.15 Black 

hat event scheduled early 

October 2018. 

P
age 35



Overall scheme RAG ratings – Sept RE August 

Scheme Mobilisation RAG 
Expenditure 

RAG 

Outcome 

RAG 
Resource RAG 

Of Note to the Board 

(i.e. areas not Green 

and reason why) 

Controls/Mitigations 

 

Out of Hospital Offer –

Living Well Hub  

Out of Hospital offer-

Clozapine in the 

Community 

Out of Hospital offer-

Enhanced access  and 

Crisis  

Out of Hospital offer-

AMHP  

If staff are not released 

from CMHT it will then 

delay the mobilisation of 

the service.  

CMHT are seeking agency 

staff to support backfill so 

that staff can be released.  

Urgent Care Offer –

Safe Haven  

If the estates work does 

not commence by the 

end of September, this 

will delay mobilisation 

Estates task and finish 

group set up, PCFT to 

support PAHT with 

schedule of 

works/requirements due to 

PAHT capacity to support 

Urgent Care Offer –

RAID Additional 

Support  

Black Hat scheduled 

6/9/2018 to finalise 

deflections 

Primary  Care in MH 

Psychological Therapy 

service in Middleton  

No deflections 

/enabler 

scheme 

If there is limited access 

to consultation rooms it 

will be difficult to see 

patients unless home 

visits are arranged. 

Limited space available to 

start to mobilise the 

service, continue to 

explore other options via 

SEG 

Primary  Care in MH –

Trauma Training  

No deflections 

/enabler 

scheme 

P
age 36



Overall scheme Risk Register  

Risk Risk Description Impact Likelihood  Score 

Workforce 

IF there is a workforce capacity gap THEN there 

is a risk to ongoing delivery and future extended 

mobilisation thus increasing the risk that 

deflection targets will not be achieved 4 4 16 

IM&T 

IF EMIS mobilisation is not achieved within 

HMR THEN there is a risk that transformation 

schemes and associated deflections are not 

achieved 3 3 9 

Finance 

IF funding is insufficient to cover the costs of the 

schemes THEN mobilisation may be delayed or 

partly achieved, resulting in a risk that deflection 

targets are not met. 3 2 6 

Deflections 
IF deflection targets are not achieved THEN 

there is a risk to the sustainability of services 

within the HMR locality 4 3 9 

LCO PMO 

CAPACITY 

IF there is insufficient resource within the LCO 

PMO THEN there is a risk to schemes 

mobilisation, analysis of deflection an savings, 

resulting in the transformation schemes not 

being able to deliver required targets 3 3 9 

 
 

P
age 37



Appendix 2 - GM TF Programme - Expenditure by Intervention – 18/19 

 

 

£ £ £ £ £ £ £

Int Theme Int No Int Name
Aug Mth 

Bud
Aug Mth Act Var

Aug YTD 

Bud
Aug YTD Act Var FY bud

Access 2.0 Directory of Services 2,375 2,583 208 11,875 12,918 1,043 28,500

Access 2.1 EASY Hubs 26,168 20,995 (5,173) 136,838 110,341 (26,497) 320,010

Access 2.6 Housing Triage 8,750 10,202 1,452 43,750 57,236 13,486 105,000

Access Total 37,293 33,780 (3,513) 192,463 180,495 (11,967) 453,510

Children's
7.1

One System Approach 115,435 88,291 (27,144) 577,174 402,754 (174,420) 1,385,218

Children's 7.5 Paediatrics Nurse Practice 32,199 23,092 (9,107) 160,994 83,280 (77,714) 386,385

Children's Total 147,634 111,382 (36,251) 738,168 486,034 (252,134) 1,771,602

Estates

3.11 Estates Investment

19,780 4,410 (15,370) 190,901 28,665 (162,236) 349,362

Estates Total 19,780 4,410 (15,370) 190,901 28,665 (162,236) 349,362

IM&T 3.12 IM&T Investment 106,696 111,233 4,537 557,813 253,005 (304,808) 1,250,851

IM&T Total 106,696 111,233 4,537 557,813 253,005 (304,808) 1,250,851

LCO 3.14 LCO 48,505 58,756 10,252 246,412 156,534 (89,877) 567,868

LCO Total 48,505 58,756 10,252 246,412 156,534 (89,877) 567,868

Neighbourhoods 4.1a Integrated Neighbourhood Teams 170,752 334,114 163,362 935,446 619,588 (315,858) 2,115,551

Neighbourhoods 4.2 Intermediate Tier Service 57,378 94,584 37,206 258,925 193,075 (65,850) 660,573

Neighbourhoods 4.3 i MH Plan - Primary in MH INT 7,416 -8,791 (16,207) 37,081 16,292 (20,789) 88,995

Neighbourhoods 4.3 ii MH Plan - Urgent Care Offer 53,910 10,837 (43,073) 269,549 38,058 (231,491) 646,918

Neighbourhoods 4.3 iii MH Plan - Out of Hospital Offer 88,572 20,121 (68,450) 442,859 96,303 (346,556) 1,062,860

Neighbourhoods 4.3 iiii MH Plan - CSDC 10,350 -32,609 (42,959) 51,749 6,250 (45,499) 124,197

Neighbourhoods
4.5 Domiciliary Care INT

97,634 38,306 (59,328) 488,170 144,973 (343,197) 1,171,607

Neighbourhoods 4.6 Care Homes in INT 128,633 139,840 11,207 638,346 324,051 (314,295) 1,538,775

Neighbourhoods 4.7 Palliative Care & End of Life 33,199 -3,316 (36,514) 180,822 40,101 (140,721) 413,211

Neighbourhoods 4.9 Complex Dependencies Mini Hub 16,708 16,708 0 83,542 72,364 (11,178) 200,500

Neighbourhoods 4.10 Substance Misuse 14,167 14,167 0 70,833 42,097 (28,736) 170,000

Neighbourhoods
4.12 Care Home - High Cost Placements

6,500 -50,000 (56,500) 82,500 0 (82,500) 128,000

Neighbourhoods

4.13 Enhanced Carers Offer

19,200 -76,800 (96,000) 96,000 0 (96,000) 230,400

Neighbourhoods 4.15 Night Service 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Neighbourhoods Total 704,418 497,160 (207,257) 3,635,820 1,593,151 (2,042,669) 8,551,587

OD 7.3 Organisational Development 26,835 10,376 (16,459) 134,173 49,380 (84,794) 322,016

OD Total 26,835 10,376 (16,459) 134,173 49,380 (84,794) 322,016

Planned Care 5.1 Cancer Pathways 14,702 3,876 (10,826) 73,497 3,876 (69,621) 176,409

Planned Care 5.1A Cancer CT Scans 15,547 0 (15,547) 77,733 0 (77,733) 186,560

Planned Care 5.2a IECP 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Planned Care 5.2b IECP2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Planned Care 5.3 Long Term Acute 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Planned Care 5.4 Pain Services 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Planned Care Total 30,248 3,876 (26,372) 151,230 3,876 (147,354) 362,969

PMO 3.13 PMO 62,427 54,396 (8,032) 312,136 239,004 (73,132) 749,127

PMO Total 62,427 54,396 (8,032) 312,136 239,004 (73,132) 749,127

Prevention 1.2 Community Outreach 90,723 48,085 (42,638) 468,050 224,309 (243,741) 1,103,109

Prevention 1.3 Elderly Oral Health 9,315 10,498 1,182 46,577 47,119 542 111,784

Prevention 1.4 Self Care 5,729 15,574 9,845 42,646 39,865 (2,781) 102,791

Prevention 1.5 Reducing Diabetes 5,667 0 (5,667) 28,333 0 (28,333) 68,000

Prevention 7.2 i Smoking in Pregnancy 6,230 6,278 48 48,648 25,678 (22,970) 100,240

Prevention 7.2 ii Children's Oral Health 20,207 32,631 12,424 101,036 47,010 (54,026) 242,487

Prevention 7.2 iii Accidents in the Home 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Prevention Total 137,871 113,065 (24,806) 735,290 383,981 (351,309) 1,728,411

Primary Care 3.1 Clinical Pharmacists 41,133 15,297 (25,836) 205,667 49,902 (155,765) 410,400

Primary Care 3.4 Focussed Care Workers 31,287 30,000 (1,287) 156,435 150,000 (6,435) 375,444

Primary Care 3.5 Primary care Academy 25,608 13,583 (12,025) 179,042 124,916 (54,125) 358,300

Primary Care 3.8 CORE + Commissioning 8,264 8,333 69 41,320 41,666 346 99,167

Primary Care 3.9 Primary Care - Social Investment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Primary Care Total 106,293 67,213 (39,079) 582,463 366,484 (215,979) 1,243,311

Urgent Care 6.1 HEATT Car 55,701 30,679 (25,022) 278,504 215,131 (63,373) 668,409

Urgent Care 6.3 Discharge to Assess Initiative 42,824 58,656 15,832 214,120 324,827 110,707 528,853

Urgent Care 6.4 Integrated Virtual Clinical Hub 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Urgent Care

6.5 A&E Front Door Streaming

72,544 13,304 (59,240) 362,719 65,992 (296,727) 870,525

Urgent Care Total 171,068 102,639 (68,430) 855,342 605,950 (249,393) 2,067,786

ICD 1.6 ICD 0 0 0 0

ICD Total 0 0 0 0

Grand Total 1,599,067 1,168,287 (430,780) 8,332,211 4,346,559 (3,985,653) 19,418,401

Page 38



Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19

Service Activity Measure
Total number of people using the HEATT car 

service
84 130 197 191 602

77 per month 74 102 174 159 509

% Deflected - A&E 88.1% 78.5% 88.3% 83.2% 84.6%

58 per month 41 56 96 87 280

& Deflected - NEL 55.4% 54.9% 55.2% 54.7% 55.0%

Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19

INT Respiratory Service Activity Measure
Total number of adult patients engaged with the 

INT - Respiratory service
TBC 178 148 135 114 575

Service Activity Measure
The service to increase the total number of carers 

known to the service by at least 50 each year

50 additional each 

year
978 1173 1497 1621 1621

Enabler
An increase in the number of carers that have a 

crisis/care plan in place 
TBC

Domiciliary 

Care
Service Activity Measure

Total number of clients in receipt of domiciliary 

care
TBC 705 705 707 712 712

Service Activity Measure
Total number of patients of the Gold Standards 

Register
TBC 889

Service Activity Measure
Number of patients recorded on Gold Standard 

Register during past 12 months by GP surgery. 
TBC 889

YTD
Q1 2018/19 Q2 2018/19 Q3 2018/19 Q4 2018/19

 The following dashboard contains TPI's agreed by the Local Care Organisation and approved at the ICB meeting in July 2018.

Appendix 3: TPI Dashboard

Measurement 

target

889

889

Theme Intervention Strategic Outcomes Transformation Performance Indicator

779

779

Neighbourhoods

Strategic Outcomes Transformation Performance Indicator
Measurement 

target

Enhanced 

Carers Offer

YTD
Q1 2018/19 Q2 2018/19 Q3 2018/19 Q4 2018/19

End of 

Life/Palliative 

Care

HEATT CarUrgent Care

Theme Intervention

Total number of HEATT car attendances which 

do not result in a same day A&E attendance
A&E Attendances

Non-Elective Admissions

The number of HEATT car attendances which do 

not result in a NEL (As an assumed % of A&E 

non-attendances)

33.6%

0

50

100

150

200

250

Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18

Total number of people using the HEATT car
service

Total number of HEATT car attendances
which do not result in a same day A&E
attendance

The number of HEATT car attendances which
do not result in a NEL (As an assumed % of
A&E non-attendances)

Key Points 
 
The HEATT car service increased its service operation hours in May 2018 to 12 hours a day, 7 days a week with 1 vehicle. 
 
Year to date, 84.6% of all HEATT car  attendances are deflected at source 
 
Year to date, the HEATT car is performing 65.26% above its A&E deflection target and 20.69% above its Non-Elective admission target  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 39



What is the current challenge?  
 
Currently there is a lack of consistency in the way we collate data for the mobilised interventions delivered by several 
providers across the borough for transformation. At present there is no monitoring of patient data to understand who is 
using the service, how many people, the outcomes from the contact and how this is having an effect to the wider system.  
 
A solution to this problem looks at implementing a new standardised dataset and accompanying process that will contain 
patient level data and will enable us to track activity more accurately providing an better overview of impact.  

How will the proposed data process work?  

Benefits  
 
 Standardised data set format provides consistency and 

accuracy in data analysis.  
 Data set is simplistic and consistent providing less of a 

burden on providers  
 Having pseudeonomised patient data will enable the 

team to track patient activity to understand the impact 
the interventions are having to the wider system.  

Challenges & Risks  
 
o Roll out to providers and IG governance may be a 

lengthy process with limited capacity / resource, with 
the increasing need for validated data to show the 
impact of the investment in transformation  

Progress to Date & Next Steps  
 
o Progress: Data set already developed ready for implementation with providers  
o Next steps: To agree the proposed process through relevant governance and stakeholders  

Proposed Intervention Data Set Process  

 Provider 
A  

 Provider 
B 

DSCRO  

Step 1 
On a monthly basis, each 
provider will individually 
complete a standardised data 
set with NHS numbers and 
submit to DSCRO  
(Data Services for Commissioners 
Regional Office) 

Step 2 
DSCRO will pseudonomise the NHS numbers and provide a 
Pseudo Patient ID and make the data available to HMR 
CCG via the DSCRO Data Warehouse   

Step 3 
HMR CCG’s BI team can extract 
the submission from the data 
warehouse for analysis and 
reconciliation against other 
datasets, i.e. A&E 

Appendix 4 

Page 40



Appendix 5: TPI's for approval

Theme Intervention
Strategic 

Outcomes
Proposed TPI(s)

Relation to 

Outcome
Measurement target Reason for Measurement Signed By

Primary Care 

Academy 

Enabler GP: The maintenance of 

WTE/Headcount of GP 

Workforce

Indirect Maintainance of 0.58 GP 

headcount per 1000 patients 

(based on 2017/18 list size)

It is accepted that other roles will emerge over the next 3 years that could impact on 

future recruitment of GP's. Provider will need to demonstrate and clearly evidence 

how alternative and complimentary roles have enabled the provider to meet this 

target, however in all cases the baseline of 0.58 GP headcount per 1000 patients 

will need to be maintained throughout taking into consideration fluctuations in 

patient list sizes. These targets are based on forecasted requirements over the next 

3 years plus an additional 30% increase on top of this requirement.

Gill Pilkington

Primary Care 

Academy 

Enabler GP: The additional recruitment 

of GP's in 2018/19/20/21

Indirect Additional 10 per year over the 

3 year period

It is accepted that other roles will emerge over the next 3 years that could impact on 

future recruitment of GP's. Provider will need to demonstrate and clearly evidence 

how alternative and complimentary roles have enabled the provider to meet this 

target, however in all cases the baseline of 0.58 GP headcount per 1000 patients 

will need to be maintained throughout taking into consideration fluctuations in 

patient list sizes. These targets are based on forecasted requirements over the next 

3 years plus an additional 30% increase on top of this requirement.

Gill Pilkington

Primary Care 

Academy 

Enabler GP: The retention of current 

GP's in 2018/19/20/21

Indirect 2018/19: 3 retained

2019/20: 4 retained

2020/2021: 8 retained

Included with Local Care Organisation Contract Gill Pilkington

Primary Care 

Academy 

Enabler Nurse: The maintenance of 

WTE/Headcount of Practice 

Nurse Workforce

Indirect Included with Local Care Organisation Contract Gill Pilkington

Primary Care 

Academy 

Enabler Nurse: The additional 

recruitment of Practice Nurses 

in 2018/19/20/21

Indirect 2018/19: 13 recruited

2019/20: 13 recruited

2020/2021: 13 recruited

These targets are designed to ensure that there is 1 WTE nurse for every 3793 

patients recommended as the ideal ratio by the HSCIC.( Health and Social Care 

information centre)It is accepted that other roles will emerge over the next 3 years 

that could impact on future recruitment of GPN's. The Provider will need to 

demonstrate and clearly evidence how alternative and complimentary roles have 

enabled the provider to meet this target, however in all cases the baseline of 0.22 

GPN WTE per 1000 patients will need to be maintained throughout taking into 

consideration fluctuations in patient list sizes. These targets are based on 

forecasted requirements over the next 3 years.

Gill Pilkington

Primary Care 

Academy 

Enabler Direct Patient Care: The 

maintainance WTE/Headcount 

of Direct Patient Care staff

Indirect Included with Local Care Organisation Contract Gill Pilkington

CORE + 2 Enabler The reduction of A&E 

attendances where the referral 

source is GP

Direct Measure suggested in order to reduce GP referred A&E attendances and overall 

system pressures where the patient may be better being treated via alternative 

routes (i.e. GP treated, Pharmacy, UCC).  This measure was included as directly 

linked to transformation and agreed as part of Core+2 metrics

*Please note, the Non-Elective Admissions TPI is currently under review

Amanda Clegg

P
ri

m
a
ry

 C
a
re

P
age 41



Appendix 5: TPI Status Update

Theme Intervention

Initial TPI's in 

agreed with 

Project Lead

TPI signed off by 

appropriate Partnership 

Board/LCO

TPI signed off by 

ICB

Data Flow 

Established
Target Set

Neighbourhoods INT Respiratory Yes Yes Yes No No

Neighbourhoods Domiciliary Care Yes Yes Yes No No

Neighbourhoods Palliative Care & End of Life Yes Yes Yes No No

Neighbourhoods Substance Misue Yes Yes Yes No No

Neighbourhoods Enhanced Carers Yes Yes Yes No Yes

Urgent Care HEATT Car Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Childrens One System Approach Yes Yes Yes Yes No

Childrens Paediatric Nurse Practitioners Yes Yes Yes Yes No

Primary Care Primary Care Academy Yes To be agreed Sept 2018 To be agreed Sept 2018 Yes Yes

Primary Care Core+2 Yes To be agreed Sept 2018 To be agreed Sept 2018 Yes Yes

Prevention Health & Wellbeing Coaches & Community Yes No No No No

Prevention Elderly Oral Health Yes No No No No

Prevention Self Care Yes No No No No

Prevention Reducing Diabetes Yes No No No No

Prevention Change Behaviour Yes No No No No

Prevention Smoking in Pregnancy Yes No No No No

Prevention Children's Oral Health Yes No No No No

Prevention Accidents in the Home Yes No No No No

Access Directory of Service Yes No No No No

Access Easy Hubs Yes No No No No

Access Housing Triage Yes No No No No

Neighbourhoods INT - Falls No No No No No

Neighbourhoods Intermediate Tier Service No No No No No

Neighbourhoods MH Plan - Primary in MH INT No No No No No

Neighbourhoods MH Plan - Urgent Care Offer No No No No No

Neighbourhoods MH Plan - Out of Hospital Offer No No No No No

Neighbourhoods Care Homes in INT No No No No No

Neighbourhoods Complex Dependencies Mini Hub No No No No No

Neighbourhoods Care Home - High Cost Placements No No No No No

Planned Care Living With and Beyond Cancer No No No No No

Planned Care IECP No No No No No

Planned Care IECP2 No No No No No

Planned Care Long Term Acute No No No No No

Planned Care Pain Services No No No No No

Planned Care Straight to CT No No No No No

Urgent Care Discharge to Assess Initiative No No No No No

Urgent Care Integrated Virtual Clinical Hubs No No No No No

Urgent Care A&E Front Door Streaming No No No No No

Primary Care Focused Care Workers No No No No No

Primary Care Clinical Pharmacists No No No No No

P
age 42



1 
 

  

Appendix 6 - Communications & engagement monthly round-up for 
July and August 2018 (transformation programme activity) 

  
Face to face engagement opportunities 
Attendance at the Feel Good Festival to promote Share For You to local people 
  

Updates on transformation programme provided at Riverside – two day road show, Better 
health for Middleton, Castleton community centre - Rochdale senior citizens and Health and 
Wellbeing Forum  
 
General update meetings with Healthwatch Rochdale, Voices for all, Littleborough Patient 
Participation Group 
 

Summary of feedback from engagement  
Residents tell us many things about services they receive in the borough. There are some 
common themes that are useful to note; 

 Overall people are very positive about and grateful for the health and social care 
services they receive in the borough 

 People are particularly happy with the introduction of extended GP services that are 
delivered from hubs across the borough at weekends and evenings  

 People told us they too often struggled to get a regular GP appointment quick 
enough and they also wait too long for a planned hospital appointment 

 People told us parking charges at hospital were too expensive 

 People said that they have to travel some distance to some hospital appointments  

 Mental health services were seen as getting better but more improvements are 
required 

 Care for older people was reported negatively in several instances 

 People using recently changed services, in particular the pain management service, 
were struggling to accept the changes and some saw the transfer to non NHS 
providers as compromising quality. 
 

Proactive news releases  
‘New technology makes records sharing a reality’ - Share For You 

 

Campaigns & Marketing 
Dr Chris Duffy’s blog: July blog included Steve Rumbelow’s appointment to HMR CCG 
Accountable Officer and August blog included Share For You information 
Design and production of accessible format Our Rochdale Connecting You A6 size business 
cards to promote the service  
Reprint of Our Rochdale Connecting You and Our Rochdale business cards 
Design and production of Share for You information leaflets and promotional items (pens 
and stickers) 

 

Social media statistics        
CCG Facebook; number of new likes during July: 22 and August: 9 
Our Rochdale sponsored campaign 1-11 July. It included Facebook and Instagram posts; 
347 views of the total 2329 sessions on Our Rochdale in the timeframe were directed from 
the sponsored social media activity. 
 
CCG Facebook organic posts: 

Page 43

https://www.hmr.nhs.uk/index.php/news-events/news/1129-new-technology-makes-records-sharing-a-reality


2 
 

 

Transformation topic Reach of posts 

 July Aug 

Locality Plan Roadshows 1182  

Oral health improvement for the 
elderly programme 

116 675 

Our Rochdale 452 867 

2018 Social Investment Fund 
(SIF) projects 

1026 1095 

GMHSCP Devo survey  438 

Share For You  760 

Dr Chris Duffy’s blog  244 

Total 2,776 4079 

  
  
CCG Twitter 
Number of new followers during July: 49 and August: -38 
 Stats for CCG Twitter organic posts: 

Transformation topic Impressions on Twitter 

 July August 

Locality Plan Roadshow 3,198  
Oral health improvement for the 

elderly programme 
1,585 1,590 

Steve Rumbelow’s appt to HMR 
CCG Accountable Officer (in 

RBC full council papers) 

317  

Our Rochdale 1072 1,592 

2018 SIF projects 3,025 1,410 

GMHSCP Devo Survey  1,389 

Total 9,197 5,981 

  

Website statistics  
Total number of sessions on the HMR CCG website: July 2018: 1.8K  August:  1.5K 
The numbers of visitors to web pages linked with transformation themes are detailed below: 

CCG Web page Number of  page views 

 July Aug 
Rochdale Borough 
Locality Plan  

76 69 

Oral Health Improvement 
for the Elderly 
Programme 

8 6 

Dr Chris Duffy’s blog 107 171 
New story: Share For You 
(issued 31 August 2018) 

 17 

         
Internal communications 
CCG News (for GPs) - promotion of single leadership 
CCG Bitesize 31/08/2018 - promotion of Share For You project 
Neighbourhood News (One Rochdale newsletter) 

Page 44

https://www.hmr.nhs.uk/index.php/getinvolved/rochdale-borough-locality-plan
https://www.hmr.nhs.uk/index.php/getinvolved/rochdale-borough-locality-plan
https://www.hmr.nhs.uk/index.php/your-health/oral-health-improvement-for-the-elderly-programme-in-rochdale-borough
https://www.hmr.nhs.uk/index.php/your-health/oral-health-improvement-for-the-elderly-programme-in-rochdale-borough
https://www.hmr.nhs.uk/index.php/your-health/oral-health-improvement-for-the-elderly-programme-in-rochdale-borough


3 
 

  

Forward look 
Crescent Radio slot with representatives from the Community Connector team 
Connecting you overviews for public and professionals to be designed and distributed 
Continued communications support for the Share For Your project 
Continued promotion of SIF recipients to discuss comms support available to promote their 
projects. 

 

Page 45



Risk Title Risk Description
Risk Owner/ 

Editor
Likelihood Impact Score Controls Assurance Gaps in Controls

Gaps in 

Assurance

Assurance 

Level

Action for Further 

Control
Likelihood Impact Score

Objective 

Owner

Failure to close the 

collective financial gap 

by 2020/21

There is a risk of failure to close the financial gap 

due to the current position of Pennine Acute and 

Pennine Care impacting on the overall 

transformation programme

Sam Evans 5 5 25 Working closely with both providers to establish a strong 

relationship to ensure a consistent focus on the Transformation 

/Locality Plan while they work on their business as usual and 

strategy to close their gaps. GM H&SC Partnership  & NHSI 

working with PCFT & PAHT to support them to close/reduce their 

financial gaps.

Decommissioning strategy written and approved.

Robust financial planning and governance of all financial 

pressures of all providers including early identification of 

pressures.

Actions to address pressures to be taken via ICB in line with 

decommissioning principles and strategies.

Regular finance and transformation 

delivery reports to both ICB and LCO 

Board.

Regular Director of Finance and 

Chief Financial Officer meetings so 

that all parties are aware of the 

system financial position

None None Significant Decommissioning 

principles signed off and 

proposed schemes been 

taken to ICB for approval - 

now need to rank in order 

as requested by ICB

3 4 12 Sam Evans

Workforce There is a risk that failure to have the  appropriate 

workforce in place across the whole system, as a 

result of a significant new workforce and shift in 

workforce required to operate new delivery 

models, will result in the inability to deliver new 

service models.

Sandra 

Croasdale

3 4 12 1. Workforce tracker in place

2. Rochdale Locality Workforce Development Group established 

4 programmes of work with tasks and finish groups identified 

including - brand/identity, culture change, career pathways, hard 

to fill posts.

3.Membership of the GM Workforce at an Exec level and Senior 

HR Representative level 

4.Work has commenced with local further education colleges to 

develop a health and care apprentices. 

Detailed plan once developed will be 

overseen by the Rochdale Locality 

Workforce Group operating which 

will report to ICB through 

Transformation Delivery Board

Detailed plan being developed - 

although high level work streams 

have been identified and work 

started

The significant gaps in the core 

workforce of PAHT is driving up 

agency costs and contributing to 

the financial deficit

None Significant Recruitment is progressing 

well to key posts to deliver 

transformation. 

2 4 8 Sandra Croasdale, 

Local Care 

Organisation

Single Hospital System & 

Northern Care Alliance 

Development

There is a risk that the focus on the Single Hospital 

System and development of the Northern Care 

Alliance could impact on the capacity to develop 

the Rochdale LCO and any delays in understanding 

where activity will sit could cause delays in 

delivering transformation.

Sam Evans 4 4 16 Working closely with both providers to establish a strong 

relationship to ensure a consistent focus on the Transformation 

/Locality Plan during the development of the single hospital 

system. Regular discussion at LCO board to ensure that all are 

aware of current situation and to establish any mitigating 

actions.

Strong North East Sector governance arrangements established 

including oversight of the clinical services strategy for Pennine 

Acute Hospital Trust, Chief Executive Rochdale Borough Council, 

Chief Officer Bury CCG are members of the single hospital service 

board.

Full locality engagement with an emerging single hospital service 

transaction board. 

Transformation bid monies to support North East Sector 

governance agreed to support the governance infrastructure and 

oversight of this service change.

Local Care Organisation Board level 

discussions to ensure awareness of 

current situation and to establish 

mitigating actions

North East Sector Governance 

arrangements

None None Limited On-going work with 

Rochdale LCO through LCO 

Board

3 3 9 Steve Rumbelow, 

Steve Taylor

Delivery of Local Care 

Organisation outcomes, 

deflections and financial 

cashable savings

There is a risk that failure to deliver specific LCO 

outcomes, deflections and subsequent financial 

cashable savings as part of the Transformation Bid 

due to potential delays in delivering milestones 

and the reliance on other NES localities to deliver 

in order to realise cashable savings will result in 

the potential for GM H&SCP to stop funding 

interventions if they do not demonstrate delivery 

of the required outcomes.

Sandra 

Croasdale

4 4 16 Detailed work is on-going led by the LCO with commissioner 

involvement to fully understand deflection delivery. This will 

result in a final report which will be scrutinised via the Integrated 

Commissioning Board and agreement of any mitigating actions 

required. 

Regular reports to LCO Board and 

ICB

North East Sector Executive 

Meetings

None None Significant Mechanisms being 

developed to effectively 

measure the delivery of 

deflections at intervention 

level.

2 4 8 Sandra Croasdale

Transformation

Current TargetAppendix - 7 GM Risk

1 of 2

P
age 46



Risk Title Risk Description
Risk Owner/ 

Editor
Likelihood Impact Score Controls Assurance Gaps in Controls

Gaps in 

Assurance

Assurance 

Level

Action for Further 

Control
Likelihood Impact Score

Objective 

Owner

Current TargetAppendix - 7 GM Risk

Benefits realisation of 

public behaviour change 

There is a risk that failure to fully realise the 

benefits of the plan that are related specifically to 

public behaviour change due to the lack of buy in 

from the public for the importance of using health 

and care service resources wisely and 

appropriately, will result in benefits in the plan 

may not be realised

Andrea Fallon 3 4 12 1. Detailed communications and engagement plan with specific 

intervention level actions linked to behaviour change and action 

to gain clinical and political buy-in to have a more assertive 

relationship with the public regarding utilisation of services.

2. Behaviour change programme to be implemented

3. Consideration to be given to mechanism for a more assertive 

approach to the public

4. External company with social marketing expertise brought in 

to provide advice and guidance on the new behaviour change 

model

5.Workshop planned 14th Sept to create new model of 

behaviour change going forward in line with the above with key 

partners from additional agencies.  This model will then be 

proposed at our leadership group.  Q4 launch of the agenda

Oversight from Access and 

Prevention Partnership Board, 

reports to LCO Board and ICB via 

Transformation reporting

None None Significant Communications and 

engagement plan under 

development with close 

links to LCO 

communications.

Behaviour change 

programme on track

2 4 8 Andrea Fallon

Stakeholder support for 

Locality Plan 

interventions

There is a risk that failure to gain public and wider 

stakeholder support for Locality Plan interventions 

and to not adequately consult where appropriate 

due to a lack of engagement with the public and 

wider stakeholders will result in reputational 

damage to all parties of the LCO and potential 

blocks on delivery of key interventions

Sandra 

Croasdale

3 4 12 1. Communications and  engagement group established across 

the sector to support both the LCO and SCF.

2. Regular engagement events held across the borough.

3. Communications representatives attendance at partnership 

boards and overarching Transformation Delivery Board to ensure 

all communications and engagement activity is identified and 

appropriately managed. Identification of where formal 

consultation is required.

Communications and Engagement 

will be monitored via ICB via 

transformation highlight reports.

None None Significant Communications and 

engagement plan under 

development with close 

links to LCO 

communications.

1 4 4 Sandra Croasdale

Engagement of Key 

Market Sectors

There is a risk that failure to fully engage with key 

market sectors including the home care market, 

wider Primary Care and Voluntary sector due to 

potential lack of understanding with respect to 

the scope of the transformation and LCO 

development agenda will result in key benefits of 

the plan not being realised.

Sandra 

Croasdale

2 4 8 1. Include key sectors in the communications and engagement 

strategy. 

2.Key members of the LCO Provider to take responsibility for 

engaging with all sectors 

3. New LCO Board established covering wider sectors

4. Representatives of the wider sector are now sitting on the LCO 

Board - Carers, Residential/Nursing Care, Domiciliary Care, Health 

and Wellbeing voluntary sector alliance

LCO Board

Partnership Agreement

None None Significant 1 4 4 Sally McIvor

2 of 2

P
age 47



Risk Title Risk Description Risk Owner/ 

Editor

Likelihood Impact Score Controls Assurance Gaps in 

Controls

Gaps in 

Assurance

Assurance 

Level

Action for 

Further Control

Likelihood Impact Score SO Objective 

Owner

Next Review 

Date

Failure to close the 

collective financial 

gap by 2020/21

There is a risk of failure to close the financial 

gap due to the current position of Pennine Acute 

and Pennine Care impacting on the overall 

transformation programme

Sam Evans

5 5 25

Working closely with both providers to establish 

a strong relationship to ensure a consistent 

focus on the Transformation /Locality Plan 

while they work on their business as usual and 

strategy to close their gaps. GM H&SC 

Partnership  & NHSI working with PCFT & 

PAHT to support them to close/reduce their 

financial gaps.

Decommissioning strategy written and 

approved.

Robust financial planning and governance of all 

financial pressures of all providers including 

early identification of pressures.

Actions to address pressures to be taken via 

ICB in line with decommissioning principles and 

strategies.

Regular finance and 

transformation delivery reports to 

both ICB and LCO Board.

Regular Director of Finance and 

Chief Financial Officer meetings 

so that all parties are aware of 

the system financial position

None None Significant Decommissioning 

principles signed 

off and proposed 

schemes been 

taken to ICB for 

approval - now 

need to rank in 

order as 

requested by ICB 3 4 12

Sam Evans End 

September 

2018

NHS Constitution 

Performance

There is a risk that failure to achieve the main 

NHS Constitution performance measures will 

impact upon CCG finances, reputation and 

patient outcomes resulting in scrutiny from 

external bodies such as NHS England and 

Greater Manchester Health & Social Care 

Partnership

Sandra 

Croasdale

4 4 16

Governing Body & ICB in receipt of 

Performance Reports which give further details 

on any underperforming NHS Constitution area

Provider and North East Sector level 

performance meetings to discuss key areas 

including A&E, Referral to Treatment, Cancer & 

Mental Health

Transformation work aiming to reduce pressure 

on healthcare services which may produce 

upturn in performance against targets

Further outcomes from ICB/Governing Body to 

be actioned by Commissioners following the 

meetings

CCG planning round refreshed in 2018

Monthly assurance visits held 

with Greater Manchester Health 

& Social Care Partnership to 

discuss constitution performance

Contracting and Governance 

routes

PMO Performance regular 

attendance at Integrated 

Commissioning Team meetings 

to highlight performance issues

Potential that 

despite existing 

controls in place 

that some 

constitution 

measures will not 

achieve 

None Significant Performance 

across all 

Constitution areas 

monitored 

regularly via 

Governing Body & 

ICB.  Further 

analysis to be 

provided regularly 

to various internal 

committees.
3 3 9

Sandra Croasdale End 

September 

2018

Benefits realisation 

of public behaviour 

change 

There is a risk that failure to fully realise the 

benefits of the plan that are related specifically 

to public behaviour change due to the lack of 

buy in from the public for the importance of 

using health and care service resources wisely 

and appropriately, will result in benefits in the 

plan may not be realised

Andrea 

Fallon

3 4 12

1. Detailed communications and engagement 

plan with specific intervention level actions 

linked to behaviour change and action to gain 

clinical and political buy-in to have a more 

assertive relationship with the public regarding 

utilisation of services.

2. Behaviour change programme to be 

implemented

3. Consideration to be given to mechanism for 

a more assertive approach to the public

4. External company with social marketing 

expertise brought in to provide advice and 

guidance on the new behaviour change model

5.Workshop planned 14th Sept to create new 

model of behaviour change going forward in 

line with the above with key partners from 

additional agencies.  This model will then be 

proposed at our leadership group.  Q4 launch 

of the agenda

Oversight from Access and 

Prevention Partnership Board, 

reports to LCO Board and ICB 

via Transformation reporting

None None Significant Communications 

and engagement 

plan under 

development with 

close links to LCO 

communications.

Behaviour change 

programme on 

track

2 4 8

Andrea Fallon End 

September 

2018

Potential failure to 

deliver deflections

There is a risk that the achievement of 

deflections within some interventions (namely 

Easy Hubs, Housing Triage and Directory of 

Service) within the theme and be unable to 

evidence deflection activity

4 4 16

There are current working to look at proxy 

measures to show evidence of schemes having 

an impact to the correct target group.  The 

outcome of this work will be cascaded at board 

level if there are gaps in proxy measures and 

the potential of decommissioning certain 

schemes when appropriate, irrespective of 

length of time of project.

Regular performance meetings with the 

provider organisations to gain understanding of 

performance at local level.

Potential that further proxy measures will 

develop as the projects gather pace.

Oversight from Access and 

Prevention Partnership Board, 

reports to LCO Board and ICB 

via Transformation reporting.  

Now to become a standing 

agenda item at Prevention Board 

Chairs meeting

Potential that 

some schemes 

will not be able to 

develop sufficient 

proxy measures 

to evidence 

outcomes

Potential for the 

risk to be raised 

at Integrated 

Commissioning 

Directorate 

meeting

Significant Suggested proxy 

measures 

currently in 

development with 

potential for 

review at 

Prevention and 

Access Board in 

September 2018
3 3 9

Andrea Fallon End 

September 

2018

Inherent Residual

Strategic Outcome 1: To be a high performing CCG, deliver our statutory duties and use our available resources innovately to deliver the best outcomes for our population

Strategic Objective 2- To deliver on the outcomes of the Locality Plan in respect of Prevention and Access (Prevention and Self Care)

 Appendix 8 - Assurance Framework

1 of 2 14/09/2018

P
age 48



Risk Title Risk Description Risk Owner/ 

Editor

Likelihood Impact Score Controls Assurance Gaps in 

Controls

Gaps in 

Assurance

Assurance 

Level

Action for 

Further Control

Likelihood Impact Score SO Objective 

Owner

Next Review 

Date

Inherent Residual

 Appendix 8 - Assurance Framework

Potential failure to 

deliver deflections

There is a risk that the level of deflections 

considered achievable, following the LCO Black 

Hat process, will not be sufficient to achieve the 

deflections as set out in the March 2018 plan. 

Sandra 

Croasdale

4 4 16

Black Hat process underway with 

commissioners attending each session.

Black Hat final report

LCO to produce a final report for 

discussion at LCO Board and 

ICB

Black Hat final 

report

None Significant Review Black Hat 

final report when 

compete to 

understand 

impact and 

determine way 

forward

4 4 16

Dianne 

David/Karen 

Kenton

End 

September 

2018

Clinical Pharmacist 

Model

There is a risk that the 'Clinical Pharmacists' 

model will not achieve the stated savings as set 

out within the transformation scheme bid

Keith Pearson

4 4 16

Agreement in place to develop new plan with 

an alternative model for review. Plan to be 

developed in conjunction with all key 

stakeholders. Workshop planned for 

September to deliver this. 

New plan to be agreed via 

change control process involving 

Programme Director, Finance

New plan to be 

developed

None Limited Detailed plan to 

be developed 

which includes 

how new model 

will deliver 

savings as per the 

plan

3 4 12

Karen Kenton End 

September 

2018

IECP Overspend There is a risk that there is an in year overspend 

on the  IECP contract resulting in the non-

achievement of the anticipated savings for the 

planned care theme.

Jen Hopes

4 4 16

Plan being developed to review the accuracy of 

the data for IECP to determine if there is a true 

overspend or whether data issues/duplication 

are the issue.

Action log being developed to be monitored via 

the IECP Contract Board

Action log monitoring via IECP 

Contract Board

Plan under 

development

None Significant Once data fully 

understood 

mitigating actions 

will be developed 

if overspend is 

determined

3 4 12

Karen Kenton End 

September 

2018

Potential failure to 

deliver deflections

There is a risk that the deflections associated 

with the Planned Care theme will not be 

delivered due to the lack of clarity around the 

IECP2 and Long Term Conditions Acute 

interventions

Jen Hopes

5 4 20

Plans in place for all other elements of the 

planned care theme. Change control process 

to be completed to bring IECP2 and LTC Acute 

into one intervention to review priority pathways

Planned Care Partnership Board 

being established

Theme reports to 

Transformation Delivery Board 

and ICB

Plan under 

development

None Limited Development of 

detailed plan 

following approval 

of change request

4 4 16

Karen Kenton End 

September 

2018

Potential failure to 

deliver deflections

There is a risk that the level of deflections 

considered achievable, following the LCO Black 

Hat process, will not be sufficient to achieve the 

deflections as set out in the March 2018 plan. 

Sandra 

Croasdale

4 4 16

Black Hat process underway with 

commissioners attending each session.

Black Hat final report

LCO to produce a final report for 

discussion at LCO Board and 

ICB

Black Hat final 

report

None Significant Review Black Hat 

final report when 

compete to 

understand 

impact and 

determine way 

forward

4 4 16

Karen Kenton End 

September 

2018

Potential failure to 

deliver deflections

There is a risk that One System Approach 

scheme will not achieve the anticipated 

deflections of children in care despite evidence 

that the number of Early Help Assessments has 

increased. 

Kylie Thornton

4 4 16

A detailed review of data (stocktake) will be 

completed by the end of October which would 

give a clearer understanding of how the One 

System Approach is  impacting on service 

delivery/practice and deflections.

Detailed oversight from Family 

Services model Partnership 

Board

None None Significant Stocktake to take 

place followed by 

further review 

when data fully 

understood

3 4 12

Karen Kenton End 

September 

2018

Potential failure to 

deliver deflections

There is a risk that the level of deflections 

considered achievable, following the LCO Black 

Hat process, will not be sufficient to achieve the 

deflections as set out in the March 2018 plan. 

Sandra 

Croasdale

4 4 16

Black Hat process underway with 

commissioners attending each session.

Black Hat final report

LCO to produce a final report for 

discussion at LCO Board and 

ICB

Black Hat final 

report

None Significant Review Black Hat 

final report when 

compete to 

understand 

impact and 

determine way 

forward

4 4 16

Karen Kenton End 

September 

2018

Strategic Objective 4- To deliver on the outcomes of the Locality Plan in respect of In Hospital  - Planned (Getting more help)

Strategic Objective 5- To deliver on the outcomes of the Locality Plan in respect of In Hospital - Urgent Care (Getting more help)

Strategic Objective 6- To deliver on the outcomes of the Locality Plan in respect of Children, young people and families 

Strategic Objective 7- To deliver on the outcomes of the Locality Plan in respect of Mental Health

Strategic Objective 3- To deliver on the outcomes of the Locality Plan in respect of Neighbourhoods & Primary Care (Getting help in the Community)

2 of 2 14/09/2018

P
age 49



 

Report to Integrated Commissioning Board 
 

 

   
Date of Meeting: 25

th
 September 2018  

Portfolio: Health and Wellbeing  
Report Author: Leanne Drury  
Public/Private Document: Public  

 

 

  
  

 

 ICB Performance Report  
 

 

Executive Summary 

 
1.  

 Illustrated in Appendix A and B are the ICB Constitution Performance 
Scorecards, reporting progress against the NHS constitution and Adult Social 
Care indicators   
 
Within Appendix A are; 
NHS Constitution and Adult Social Care indicators with granular detail facts 
as to what effect this has had on Rochdale residents, using 2017/18 data as 
a 12 month summary. Going forward these will evolve to reflect current 
performance with a proposed summary of quarter one reported within next 
month’s pack.  
 
Reported for this period for NHS Constitution are; 

1. Accident and Emergency (A&E)  
2. Referral to Treatment (RTT  
3. Early Intervention Psychosis (EIP)  
4. Cancer two week wait and Breast two week wait  
5. Improving Access to Psychological Therapies (IAPT)  

 
Within Appendix B; 
Reported for this period for Adult Social Care are; 

1. Cash Budgets 
2. Reabled or remain at home 
3. Learning Disabilities 
4. Delayed transfer of care 
5. Long Term Support 
6. Carers receiving a carer specific service 

 
 

 

Page 50

Agenda Item 8



Recommendation 

 
2. ICB are requested to note the content of this report and feedback on the new 
report format and contents 

 

Reason for Recommendation 

 
3. Regular update to ICB 

 

 

Key Points for Consideration 

 
4. 
 
 
 
4.1 

Key points for consideration are provided in the detailed performance 
dashboard appended to this document 
 
Alternatives Considered 
 
 

 

Costs and Budget Summary 

 
5. Not applicable 

 

Risk and Policy Implications 

 
6. Not applicable 

 

Consultation 

 
7. Commissioning Leads 

Business Intelligence 

 

Background Papers Place of Inspection 

 

8.  Number One Riverside, 3rd Floor, Smith 
Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU 

 

For Further Information Contact: Sandra Croasdale  
Strategic Commissioning Programme 
Director  
M: 07747 473888  
E: scroasdale@nhs.net  

 

Page 51



Apr May June July YTD

Action:

Action:

The CCG has requested sight of PAHT’s recovery plans and trajectories for the Integrated Elective Care Pathway (IECP) specialties, but trajectories have not yet been received. The CCG needs this information in order to understand the potential activity and cost impact of the 

recovery plans. This information will also allow the CCG to ensure patients are having their assessments and treatments in a timely manner, and in line with national targets. Action plans are being formulated with a deadline of 21st September 18.

To date Rochdale has 10 patients that have breached 52 weeks of waiting to be treated. 7 of the 

breaches have occurred at MFT, mostly identified during a systematic review patients on waiting lists 

for treatment and review of their patient tracking system.

Integrated Commissioning Board Performance Dashboard-Constitution Exception Report

52 week breaches- 

How many Rochdale 

patient breaches have 

there been of the zero 

tolerance to any 52 

week breaches

16,96216,96216,93416,447<1668016,680

10

88.7%Referral to Treatment 

(RTT)-How many 

Rochdale patients are 

treated within 18 weeks 

following  referral from 

a GP?

88.9%88.5%83.60%

Waiting List- 
Rochdale's current 

patients waiting to be 

treated

88.1%

Timeline rolling 12 months

10/10 

04/10

n/a

2017/18 

Results

Action:

The CCG has written to both PAHT and MFT requesting further information and raised a query at PAHT Contract Quality and Performance Group, with a response deadline of 14th September 18. This has included assurance that no patients have suffered harm because of their 

wait, the scheduled treatment date for each patient, information on the explanation, apology detail provided to patients and assurances that no other patients appointment has been utilised to complete a backlog. 

Target 2018/19Indicator GM Peers

1 best 10 worst

89.0%

03.00 4 3 10

Recovery Plan have been put in place where specialities are not delivering treatment in the line with RTT guidance. These include using staff overtime or locum activity to provide additional outpatient clinics or theatre sessions, outsourcing activity to independent sector and staff 

recruitment campaigns.

The trusts and the CCG recognises that whilst this assists short term recovery, pathway transformation of redesign is required. Moving forward Rochdale is focusing on;

a) Reducing demand for elective care by 

• Launch of advice and guidance services as an alternative to referral by October 2018

• Launch of new single elective referral form with a minimum date set by October 2018

• Launch a single elective access model with PAHT that will include a minimum dataset check and clinical triage of referrals, rejections of inappropriate referrals or referrals for treatment of limited clinical value by December 2018

b) A comprehensive review of the elective care programme is being undertaken in Sept/Oct 18 which will utilise Right Care data and clinical input to develop a robust programme of delivery. Each proposed scheme in the programme will have a fully worked up business case 

detailing cashable and non cashable benefits and will also focus on improving performance. The high level programme plan will be presented to ICB in October 2018. The review development will be undertaken by additional interim capacity.

Background and current performance 

RTT performance has been declining nationally and locally in response to increasing demand and 

capacity, combined with the impact of 2 week wait and non-elective pressures. 

The 18/19 planning guidance asked CCGs to work with providers to ensure that performance does 

not dip below the 17/18 March position of 88.5%, and ideally improve. The national target was 

previously 92%.  

The majority of HMR patients are treated by Pennine Acute Hospitals NHS Trust (PAHT), with 

significant activity at Manchester Foundation Trust (MFT) and Salford Royal Foundation Trust (SRFT). 

PAHT and MFT are both experiencing significant capacity problems in the majority of specialties 

which has had an impact on Rochdale's RTT position. 

The planned number of patients trajectories were compiled during the planning round in early 2018. 

Year to date there are 1.7% patients waiting above plan. Data investigations are taking place to 

establish the disconnect between decreasing referrals, attendances and backlog clearance.  There is 

evidence that specialties with the  poorest RTT performance have increasing numbers of patients on 

their waiting list who have not yet had their first outpatient appointment or diagnostic test, when 

compared to this time last year. 

Commentary

What does this mean for Rochdale patients?

84%

86%

88%

90%

92%

94%

96%

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

On Pathway Waiting List

14/09/2018

P
age 52



Apr May Jun Jul YTD

84.0%

89.8% 91.6% 92.1% 89.5% 90.8%

Apr May June July YTD

Indicator 2017/18 

Results

Action:

Update on previous actions:     

Rochdale asked Pennine Care to be clearer on its approach to service improvement and managing risks to service delivery following an investment of £307k. This plan was requested in July 2018 although this has not yet been received. 

As a detailed report has not been received, Rochdale is not clear how the service has managed to achieve its targets over the past two months and significantly reduce its longstanding patient waiting list. Although the latest data shows that the monthly performance target for 

June has been achieved, there is a discrepancy in this data which is currently under review. 

Actions to resolve

Rochdale has outlined a detailed performance report which the EIP service must now provide on a monthly basis. The contents of this report have been accepted by Pennine. 

Rochdale has put together a clear financial reporting template so that Pennine can provide a breakdown of how they have invested the 307k additional payment to improve the EIP service. The absence of this report in July has been escalated and will now be discussed at the 

Strategic Commissioning and Performance Board. 

   

The access and waiting time standard trajectory requires people experiencing first episode psychosis 

will be treated with a NICE recommended package of care within two weeks of referral (53% in 

2018/19). Although recent data suggests that more patients are being seen and treated within two 

weeks, performance of the service remains a concern in 2018/19 and action is being taken by 

Rochdale to ensure the service improves. 

CommentaryTarget 2018/19

50.0%

What does this mean for Rochdale patients?

1 best 10 worst Background and current performance 

Early Intervention 

Psychosis (EIP)- How 

many Rochdale patients 

with psychosis are 

treated within two 

weeks of referral?

15.7% 53% 38.46% 50.0% 10/10 71.43%

The target for A&E reduced nationally from 95% to 90% recently however this still poses a significant 

challenge for the providers. Pennine Acute Hospitals Trust report trust level performance data via  

daily reporting. Year to date, as at 4th September 2018, PAHT are achieving  93.40% of patients seen 

within 4 hours. Performance by site is reported as; Fairfield General Hospital 93.79%, North 

Manchester General Hospital 82.02%, Royal Oldham 80.49% and Rochdale Infirmary Urgent Care 

Centre is 97.86%. Rochdale are again the best performing across GM when using the accurate local 

datasets. 

Local performance data, which is a true reflection 

of all Rochdale patients A&E activity

GM Peers Timeline rolling 12 months

Indicator 2017/18 

Results

Target 2018/19 GM Peers Timeline rolling 12 months Commentary

1 best 10 worst Background and current performance 

A&E- How many 

Rochdale patients are 

seen within 4 hours of 

attending all A&E 

departments?

83.60% 90% 85.8% 88.3% 88.9% 86.7% *5/10

*1/10

Action:

The development of the Urgent Care Plan via the Urgent Care Locality Board in September will have a section focusing on strengthening the ‘front door’ of A&E departments. 

Key activities will include;

• Streaming by Advanced Practitioners nurses, who will signpost and divert people away from A&E

• Ambulatory Care Referral Unit (AMRU) development assessment and ambulatory needs and then home 

• Surgical Assessment Care Unit (SACRU) development-pre-assessment of surgical needs and then booked into planned care, as required

These activities will improve patient flow within A&E or meet the 4 hour target. Timescales: September 18 to start building on existing activity 

What does this mean for Rochdale patients?

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

0

5

10

15

Seen Referred

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

Attendances Performance Target

14/09/2018

P
age 53



Apr May Jun Jul YTD

Apr May Jun Jul YTD

74.8%

79.4%

A review meeting with Jon Rouse Chief Officer for Greater Manchester Health and Social Care Partnership is taking place on 18.09.18 to review the Northern Care Alliance (NCA) proposal to improve performance regarding cancer indicators. 

The NCA have developed a ‘case of need’ that outlines the resources both financial and non-financial required to support the recovery of cancer performance and waiting times. The objective is the recovery and sustainability of North East Sector (NES) cancer performance to be 

compliant of the Two Week Wait (TWW) standards and 62 day Greater Manchester allocated positioning by November 2018 and March 2019, respectively. 

Pennine Acute has been reporting their concerns  throughout 2017/18 in relation to effectively 

achieving a number of the cancer targets.  The Two Week Wait performance dipped in March 18 and 

has remained challenging moving into 2018/19.  The target has contributed to increases in referrals, 

inability to secure additional capacity and appropriate graded staffing to fulfil the service needs.

Cancer two week wait 

for breast symptoms 

Action:

Background and current performance 

Timeline rolling 12 months Commentary

18.0% 19% YTD. 

1.58% 

monthly

1.37% 2.98%

U
n

availab
le at p

re
sen

t

Indicator

Action:

Update on previous actions:

Rochdale requested a recovery plan from Thinking Ahead to gain assurances on the effective management of the patient waiting list. The report has demonstrated that the team continues to have difficulty around reducing the length of time patients wait for second appointments 

following initial assessment, although the team is now fully staffed and now plan to see a reduction in waiting times for the service for Step 2 and Step 3 patients. The plan also revealed that Thinking Ahead significantly underuse additional resources within their own team who 

may be able to more appropriately meet some of their patient’s needs. The concerns regarding access to Step 3.5-4 services persist due to ongoing workforce recruitment challenges.

Actions to resolve

Based on the findings of the plan, Rochdale is now in the process of reviewing the entire IAPT pathway to identify opportunities where patients waiting for therapy may benefit from access to other non-clinical services that can have a positive impact on their mental health. 

Rochdale will be working closely with Thinking Ahead and other organisations across the borough to scope this work with a view to developing a new IAPT pathway by November.

GM Peers Timeline rolling 12 months Commentary

1 best 10 worst

Improving Access to 

Psychological Therapies  

(IAPT)-How many 

Rochdale patients with 

depression and/or 

anxiety disorders have 

entered treatment?

1.61% Thinking Ahead provide IAPT services in Rochdale. The IAPT service delivers a stepped model of care. 

Step 2 (Mild to Moderate Mental Health problems) and Step 3 (Moderate to Severe problems) are 

delivered directly by Thinking Ahead, with Step 3.5-4 services (severe and complex mental health 

needs and psychological difficulties) subcontracted to Pennine Care.         

Background and current performance 

What does this mean for Rochdale patients?

73.1% 93% 50.8% 65.3%72.5%

U
n

availab
le at p

re
sen

t

89.9% 93% 73.1% 79.0% 75.7%Cancer two week wait-

How many Rochdale 

patients who are 

referred on the urgent 

two week suspected 

cancer pathway?

What does this mean for Rochdale patients?

Indicator 2017/18 

Results

Target 2018/19

2017/18 

Results

Target 2018/19 GM Peers

1 best 10 worst

0%

100%

400

900

Seen Referred

6%

11%

16%

21%

A
p

r

M
ay Ju
n

Ju
l

A
u

g

Se
p

O
ct

N
o

v

D
e

c

Ja
n

Fe
b

M
ar

A
p

r

M
ay

Performance Target

0%

100%

0

100

Ju
n

Ju
l

A
u

g

Se
p

O
ct

N
o

v

D
e

c

Ja
n

Fe
b

M
ar

A
p

r

M
ay Ju
n

Seen Referred

14/09/2018

P
age 54



14/09/2018

P
age 55



Apr May June July YTD

Apr May June July YTD

73.8% 74.2%

Apr May June YTD

Integrated Commissioning Board Performance Dashboard Exception Report- Adult Social Care

Indicator 2017/18 

Results

Target 2018/19 GM Peers Timeline rolling 12 months

The north west average for this indicator at year end was 23% and GM average was 24%. The performance has 

seen a steady increase over the past 3 years and the trend is continuing. The service users included in this 

indicator are those who have a package of care and take this as a cash budget instead of a managed budget. 

Service users who take their personal budget as a cash payment have more choice and control over how they are 

supported through their allocated budget and it gives more flexibility to the service user.

Actions

This measure performance will increase through the year and is expected to be exceeded by year end. 

What does this mean for Rochdale residents?

Commentary

1 best 10 worst Background and current performance 

Cash Budgets-The percentage of 

Adult social Care service users with 

self directed support who take this 

as a cash budget

35% 40% 35.3% 35.5% 37.2% 37.2%

Indicator 2017/18 

Results

Target 2018/19 GM Peers Timeline rolling 12 months

37.2% 2nd best in GM at 

the end of 17/18.

Commentary

1 best 10 worst Background and current performance 

Reabled or remain at home-

Percentage of Rochdale service 

users who are reabled or remain at 

home with a care package 

subsequent to a period of 

reablement 

77% 77% 79.8% 80.8% 77.0%

Th
is is n

o
t b

en
ch

m
arked

 again
st an

y 

o
th

er co
u

n
cils

The service defines reabled where the service users either has no ongoing  care needs or requires less support via 

a care package than when they entered into the stars service. There were over 1,300 service users who accessed 

the STARs service in 2017/18- 89% of these were over 65 years old. 15% of stars discharges went back into 

hospital. For the first 4 months of 2018, 90% of people who were discharged from hospital into stars were still at 

home 91 days after their discharge which is a good measure of reablement success and a good national 

performance.

Actions
The stars service performance has continued to improve over the last few years. No actions required at present. 

The months where performance has dropped under target were mainly due to a higher number of service users 

returning to hospital in that month. 

What does this mean for Rochdale residents?

Indicator 2017/18 

Results

Target 2018/19 GM Peers

6
.5

0
%

3rd best in GM at 

year end 17/18

At the end of 17/18, the north west average was 6.3% and the GM average was 5.3%. We have set a challenging 

target which we will aim to achieve by year end and our performance is strong against GM peers

Actions:

We have ongoing work with providers to support people into paid employment and also improvements in the data 

on our systems to ensure all employment statuses are recorded

What does this mean for Rochdale residents?

Timeline rolling 12 months Commentary

1 best 10 worst Background and current performance 

Learning Disabilities- The 

percentage of Rochdale Adult 

Social Care service users with a 

learning disability who are in paid 

employment

6.5% 7%

6
.5

0
%

6
.5

0
%

6
.5

0
%

0

0.02

0.04

0.06

0.08

0

0.02

0.04

0.06

0.08

Percentage of service users with a learning…
Target

60%

65%

70%

75%

80%

85%

90%

A
p

r

M
ay Ju
n

Ju
l

A
u

g

Se
p

O
ct

N
o

v

D
ec Ja
n

Fe
b

M
ar

A
p

r

M
ay Ju
n

service users who are reabled or remain at home

Target

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

 service users with self directed support who take this as a
cash budget
Target

1/4 14/09/2018

P
age 56



Apr May June July YTD

Apr May June July YTD

13

Apr May June July YTD

1621

Indicator 2017/18 

Results

Target 2018/19 GM Peers Timeline rolling 12 months Commentary

1 best 10 worst Background and current performance 

1,130 *2/10 The Greater Manchester average for June was 693 delayed days and Rochdale was the second best performance in 

Greater Manchester for that month. 70% of the delays in June were NHS attributable, 12% both NHS and Social 

Care and 18% were Social Care attributable delays. 182 of the 341 delayed days were acute and 159 non-acute. 

There is some investigation ongoing as to the method of data recording in the non acute performance - there may 

be some performance revision in future months as this happened in the previous year. 

Actions:

Data is monitored closely by all agencies on this indicator and although performance is off track against the set 

target, this is being reviewed as part of a wider BCF target review

Delayed transfer of care (days)-
How many Rochdale patients has 

their discharge delayed from a 

hospital seting(all reasons and 

causes- NHS and Social Care) 

3,154 2,613 for 

the year, 

653 YTD

406 383 341

What does this mean for Rochdale residents?

Indicator 2017/18 

Results

Target 2018/19 GM Peers Timeline rolling 12 months Commentary

1 best 10 worst Background and current performance 

Long Term Support- How many 

Rochdale Adult social Care service 

users, aged 65 and over, have their 

support needs met by ASC funded 

permanent admission to 

residential or nursing care.

247 243 for 

the year

28 29 21 91 4th best in GM at 

year end 17/18

There is  an expectation that the  number of admissions is slightly higher in quarter one and quarter 4. Although 

the number of admissions in quarter 1 is higher than the expected target, it is still lower than the same period 2 

years ago and the proportional variance against the number of people in residential/ nursing care is lower than the 

same period last year (meaning there are less people in council funded placements against June last year)

Actions:

Every permanent placement by the local authority is scrutinised to ensure that this is the only available option. 

With the aging population, it is expected that the numbers will increase however the age of people entering into a 

permanent placement has increased meaning they are able to stay at home longer if that is their wish

What does this mean for Rochdale residents?

Indicator 2017/18 

Results

Target 2018/19 GM Peers

1,621 1st at year end 

17/18

This indicator is a cumulative one which is zero based at the start of each new financial year. In addition to Adult 

social Care, Rochdale residents can access carer support through N Compass carers resource who provide many 

services such as advocacy, crisis planning, short break payments and information and advice. Since N Compass 

started providing addidional support, there has been performance improvement of 15% in quarter one against the 

same period last year. As well as information and advice, Adult social Care complete formal assessments of needs 

for carers and packages of care where applicable

Actions:

This indicator is performing well again GM peers (year end 17/18) and against expected levels. 

What does this mean for Rochdale residents?

Timeline rolling 12 months Commentary

1 best 10 worst Background and current performance 

Carers receiving a carer specific 

service- how many carers in 

Rochdale have received at least 

information and guidance from 

Adult social Care during the year

2,347 2500 978 1173 1497

0

50

100

150

200

250

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

Apr Jun Aug Oct Dec Feb Apr Jun

DToC Target

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

A
p

r

M
ay Ju
n

Ju
l

A
u

g

Se
p

O
ct

N
o

v

D
e

c

Ja
n

Fe
b

M
ar

A
p

r

M
ay Ju
n

Support needs met Target

2/4 14/09/2018

P
age 57



Report to Integrated Commissioning Board

Date of Meeting- 25th September 
2018
Portfolio- Integrated 
Commissioning

Lead Member- Councillor Rowbotham 

Report Author- Tim Buckley Lead Officer- Sam Evans
Public Document

Health and Social Care Pool Budget Report- 
Period 4 (July)  2018/19 

Executive Summary

1.1

1.2

1.3

To update the Integrated Commissioning Board (ICB) on the financial position 
of the pooled budget for the financial year 2018/19 at period 4 (end of July).
The pooled budget excludes the Better Care Fund (BCF) and the GM 
Transformation funding which will be reported separately to the ICB in 
2018/19.The pooled budget has been amended to take into account the 
savings reported in April and May, the gap at month 4 on the pooled budget is 
£3.1m which is a reduction of £0.1m since the period 2 report which was 
reported to the June ICB. This is as a consequence of the additional protection 
of Adult Social Care services agreed by the ICB from the BCF in period 3. 
However, due to the timing of meetings it can be reported that at month 5 the 
gap has been reduced, non-recurrently, by a further £0.4m to £2.7m.

The Local Authority (LA) provider services for Adult Social Care (ASC) are 
reporting commissioning pressures around residential and community services 
of £0.4m which are being offset by savings from staff turnover leaving no net 
variations to budget at period 4. The LA Public Health (PH) services are not 
reporting any variations to budget at period 4. LA Children’s Social Care 
(CSC) provider services have identified a potential pressure around residential 
placements (£3.9m) and staffing issues (£0.1m) leaving a pressure of £4.0m. 

The ICB should note that during 2018/19 any LA provider service variations, 
being noted in the report are for information only (detailed in the appendices), 
as it will be for the Council to identify mitigating actions. However for future 

Page 58

Agenda Item 9



1.4

financial years funding of such pressures will be subject to the development of 
the pooled fund commissioning arrangements. 

The CCG are showing a pressure of £0.7m at period 4. The CCG pressure is 
shown in the pool but the CCG have contributed an additional amount to the 
pool from reserves to offset this pressure. The pressure relates to Acute 
contracts (£0.2m) and Mental Health expensive placements (£0.7m) partially 
offset by underspends in Community and other services (-£0.2m).

Recommendation

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

ICB notes the current position for the pooled budget for 2018/19.

ICB notes the funding gap at period 4 on the pool is £3.1m, but this has been 
further reduced at period 5 to £2.7m using £0.4 of non-recurrent funding, any 
remaining gap will be addressed in future reports to ICB.

ICB notes that the Council will have responsibility to identify mitigating actions 
for the variations in LA Children’s provider services in 2018/19 (£4.0m). 

ICB notes that the CCG have £0.7m pressures at period 4 but that the CCG 
has contributed additional funding from reserves to offset this pressure in the 
pooled accounts.

Reason for Recommendation

3.1

3.2

This report updates the ICB on the Health and Social Care pooled budgets for 
2018/19 in line with National Health Service England (NHSE) guidelines and 
the Greater Manchester (GM) Health and Social Care Partnership 
requirements. As part of operating a pooled budget regular monitoring reports 
are required.

The BCF has been excluded from the pooled reporting and will be reported 
separately to ICB in line with NHSE requirements for reporting each quarter. If 
the locality receives graduation during 2018/19 then the reporting will be 
reviewed to consider bringing the BCF into the pool and reporting the budgets 
together.

Key Points for Consideration

4.1

4.2

The pooling of budgets between the two organisations, LA and CCG, is in line 
with NHSE guidelines to progress integration of Adult Social Care and Health 
and is in accordance with the decision made by full Cabinet and the CCG 
Governing Body.
 
The operation of a formal pooled budget has been in place from April 2018 in 
line with the agreement for Transformation Funding from the GM Health and 
Social Care Partnership.

Page 59



4.3

4.4

Graduation has not yet been received from NHSE for the locality, this means 
that reporting of the BCF is required each quarter in line with NHSE 
guidelines.

Alternatives Considered
The operation of a formal pool in 2018/19 is in line with the requirements of  
the GM Health and Social Care Partnership and builds on the shadow pool 
that was operated by the ICB in 2017/18, therefore there are no alternatives to 
consider.

Costs and Budget Summary

5.1

5.2

The changes from the  period 2 budget position reported to ICB in June are 
listed in Table 1 below;

Table 1
Variations P4 to P2 budgets

Budget 
£m's

Pooled Budget at Period 2 2018/19 336.8
Local Authority
Realignment of some Children's services 
between pooled and non pooled services 0.2
Additional budget for supporting GM 
ADASS 0.1
Other Budget increases 0.2
Additional protection of ASC services from 
BCF contribution agreed by ICB at period 3 -0.1
Total movement in LA pooled budgets 0.4
CCG
Budget reduced, non-recurrently, to 
reflect the reduction in expenditure for 
long-length-of-stay accruals, made at the 
end of 17/18, and subsequently not 
required (£0.4m)- (see further one -off 
reduction in the gap at month 5) -0.4
Total movement in CCG pooled budgets -0.4
Revised Pooled Budgets at P4 2018/19 336.8

Children’s Social Care have reviewed the allocation of pooled, non-pooled and 
aligned service budgets since period 2 and this has resulted in an increase to 
the pool of £0.2m. Adult’s Social Care have been allocated additional budget 
£0.1m to contribute to GM ADASS work and there are other budget increases 

Page 60



5.3

5.4

to reflect the impact of the National Living Wage and other issues across the 
LA service areas £0.2m. This has been offset by the ICB decision to increase 
the protection of ASC services at period 3 reporting (£0.125m). The CCG have 
reduced the pool budget by £0.4m (one-off) to reflect some accruals from 
2017/18 in the Acute services being overstated, this is being used to reduce 
the pooled gap (one –off) in period 5 to £2.7m.

The pooled budget in table 2 below at period 4 has a funding gap of £3.1m, 
this is a small change to the position reported to ICB in June (£3.2m) resulting 
from the additional contribution to protect ASC services from the BCF agreed 
by the ICB  in period 3. In effect this decision has moved some of the Adults 
pooled budget costs into the BCF. A further report at period 5 reduces the gap 
by another £0.4m (see table 1 above) to £2.7m. Progress on the savings 
schemes and additional plans to bridge the remaining funding gap will be 
provided to the ICB in regular reports during 2018/19 and will be discussed by 
the Finance, Performance and Risk sub group at its future meetings.

For information, and to support commissioning decisions, the LA provider 
services financial positions are being reported to ICB (see appendices 
attached). There is a net budget pressure in Children’s Social Care Services of 
£4.0m and the Council is currently undertaking further work to understand this 
pressure and to identify mitigating actions. 

Page 61



Table 2
Health and Social Care Pooled Budget 2018/19

Adult's Services
2018/19 
Budget

2018/19 
Forecast Variance Narrative

Period 4 budget position £m's £m's £m's
Management, Support and 
Commissioning 4.7 4.7 0.0
Adults, Older People and 
Physical Disability 46.1 46.1 0.0
Learning Disability / Mental 
Health 53.1 53.5 0.4

Additional Section 117 patients £0.5m; 
Adult placements (£0.1m)

Acute Health Care 111.6 111.7 0.1

The number of providers for AQP 
Diagnostics has risen towards the end of 
the last financial year with a corresponding 
rise in activity. 

Primary Care - Prescribing 30.2 30.2 0.0

Other Services 1.9 1.8 -0.1

Under spend on Community Neuro-Rehab 
(£0.2m); Over spend on Community IVF 
Service £0.1m

Adult Public Health 8.0 8.0 0.0
Total Adult Pooled Services 255.6 256.0 0.4
Children's Services
Period 4 budget position
Management, Support and 
Commissioning 3.2 3.2 0.0
Children's Early Intervention 5.9 5.9 0.0

Health Community Services 5.8 5.7 -0.1
Under spend on Continuing Healthcare 
activity (£0.1m)

Learning Disability / Mental 
Health 5.6 5.9 0.3

Children’s Joint Placements over spend 
£0.3m

Special Educational Needs 3.5 3.5 0.0

Acute Health Care 21.7 21.8 0.1
Over spend on Pennine Acute Children’s 
Services £0.1m

Children 0-19 Public Health 5.0 5.0 0.0
Cared for Children and 
Safeguarding 21.6 21.6 0.0
Primary Care - Prescribing 8.0 8.0 0.0
Other Services 0.8 0.8 0.0
Total Children's Pooled 
Services 81.1 81.4 0.3
Local Transformation Fund 0.1 0.1 0.0
Total Health and Social Care 
Pooled Budgets 336.8 337.5 0.7

Contribution from Partners

CCG -245.2 -245.9 -0.7
Additional CCG contributions to offset 
pressures reported above

LA -88.5 -88.5 0.0
Includes the additional support to ASC 
£0.125m agreed by ICB in Period 3

Total Contributions -333.7 -334.4 -0.7
Revised Gap 3.1 3.1 0.0

Page 62



5.5 There are some aligned services which sit outside of the pooled budget which 
are listed in table 3 below, these are not under the control of the ICB but are 
included here for information, decision making around these budgets remains 
with the LA or CCG.

Table 3
Aligned Services

Service Host
Budget 
£000's

Health Protection PH 160
Physical Activity PH 631
Smoking PH 33
Other Public Health PH 1,201
Link4life PH 2,526
Management and Strategy CSC 269
School Improvement CSC 227
School Organisation CSC 229
Schools Personnel CSC 68
Area Special Needs Co Ordinator CSC 24
Educational Psychology CSC 466
Youth Offending Team CSC 228
Regional Adoption Agency CSC 1,214
Primary Care CCG 7,044
Acute Services CCG 42,615
Core Running Costs CCG 4,432
Primary Care-Co Commissioning CCG 35,898
Total Aligned Services 97,265

Risk and Policy Implications

The pooled budget has been agreed to be operated in 2018/19. Section 75 of 
the National Health Service 2006 Act gives powers to local authorities and 
health bodies to establish and maintain pooled funds out of which payment 
may be made towards expenditure incurred in the exercise of prescribed LA 
functions and prescribed NHS functions.

6.1

Consultation

7.1 There is no requirement for consultation on the contents of this report other 
than with the partners i.e. the CCG and the LA. Relevant officers from both 
organisations have been consulted on the content of this report.

Page 63



Background Papers Place of Inspection

8.1 LA Monitoring working papers

CCG Monitoring working papers

Number 1 Riverside

Number 1 Riverside

For Further Information Contact: Tim Buckley

tim.buckley@rochdale.gov.uk

01706 925252 

Page 64



Appendices (LA appendices- overspends are negative , underspends positive 
variations)

REVENUE FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT STATEMENT
AS AT END OF JULY 2018

Service: Adult Social Care

Table 1. Financial Management Forecast

Area of Service

Current 
Approved       

Net              
Budget

Forecast 
spend to 
year end

Variation - 
Forecast 
spend to 
Current 
Budget

 £'000  £'000  £'000
CONTROLLABLE BUDGETS

Management 8,655 8,655 0
Neighbourhoods 19,233 19,443 (210)
Personalisation 13,376 13,465 (89)
Specialist Services 615 398 217
Governance Business Support & HIA 1,380 1,312 68
Commissioning 2,219 2,093 126
Statutory Functions 544 656 (112)
SUB TOTAL 46,022 46,022 0
Contribution from Pooled Budget (46,022) (46,022) 0
REVISED SUB TOTAL 0 0 0

Brief Explanation of Major Variances £'000

(210)

(89)

217

68

126

(112)

TOTAL 0

Neighbourhoods:- Budget pressure arising from increases in costs and numbers 
of people accessing residential and community based services in neighbourhood 
teams

Personalisation:- Budget pressure arising from increases in costs and numbers of 
people accessing residential and community based services in boroughwide teams

Specialist Services:-  In year savings due to staff turnover

Governance Business Support & HIA:- In year savings due to staff turnover

Commissioning:- In year savings due to staff turnover

Statutory Functions:- Budget pressures relating to the numbers of people 
requiring Deprivation of Liberty Safeguarding (DOLS) assessments

Page 65



REVENUE FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT STATEMENT
AS AT END OF JULY 2018

Service: Children's Social Care

Table 1. Financial Management Forecast

Area of Service

Current 
Approved       

Net              
Budget

Forecast 
spend to 
year end

Variation - 
Forecast 
spend to 
Current 
Budget

 £'000  £'000  £'000
CONTROLLABLE BUDGETS

First Response 1,394 1,394 0
Cared for Children 17,264 21,151 (3,887)
Safeguarding Children Unit 794 793 1
Youth Offending Team 302 302 (0)
Child Protection & Care Proceedings 1,866 1,865 1
Advice and Screening 306 306 (0)
Practice Improvement 1,714 1,699 15
Sure Start 3,651 3,651 0
School Support 756 756 0
Special Educational Needs and Disability 3,491 3,491 0
Youth Service 1,005 1,005 0
Management and Administration 1,212 1,371 (159)
Early Help 443 443 0
TOTAL POOLED BUDGET 34,196 38,227 (4,031)
Contribution from Pooled Budget (34,196) (34,196) 0
REVISED SUB TOTAL 0 4,031 (4,031)

Brief Explanation of Major Variances £'000

(3,887)

(159)

(4,031)TOTAL

Management and Administration:- Overspend due to Market Factor Supplements 
(required due to staff recruitment and retention issues), together with honorariums 
and long term sick cover.

Cared for Children:- Mainly on External Placements due to an increase in the 
numbers and complexity of need for Cared for Children together with a lack of internal 
foster carers and volatile market prices. 

Page 66



REVENUE FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT STATEMENT
AS AT END OF JULY 2018

Service: Public Health

Table 1. Financial Management Forecast

Area of Service

Current 
Approved       

Net              
Budget

Forecast 
spend to 
year end

Variation - 
Forecast spend 

to Current 
Budget

 £'000  £'000  £'000
CONTROLLABLE BUDGETS

Sexual Health 1,681 1,681 0
NHS Health Checks 262 262 0
Public Health Advice 69 69 0
Obesity and Physical Activity 60 60 0
Substance Misuse 2,851 2,851 0
Children 0-19 Public Health Programme 5,001 5,001 0
Mental Health and Wellbeing 25 25 0
Other Public Health Commissioning 1,741 1,741 0
Health Protection 130 130 0
Public Health Staffing and Non Staffing 1,191 1,191 0
SUB TOTAL 13,012 13,012 0
Contribution from Pooled Budget (13,012) (13,012) 0
TOTAL POOLED BUDGETS (0) (0) 0

Page 67



Document is Restricted

Page 68

Agenda Item 14
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 71

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	ICB Actions List

	7 Transformation Highlight Report
	8 ICB Performance Report
	9 Health and Social Care Pooled Budget Report - Period 4 (July) 2018/19
	14 HMRCCG -  Commissioning & Contract Intentions 2019/20
	ICB private item - annex a




